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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

In the past year, there was a lackluster economic performance from
Hong Kong and Macau. Controversies over various issues revealed
a wide spectrum of political stances with divergent opinions in Hong
Kong society. Topics such as 2017 universal suffrage, mainland-
Hong Kong integration, adjustments to the Individual Visit Scheme,
the emergence of indigenous stance, etc. had been focus of the
general public. Meanwhile, there was escalating tension between
the administrative body and the legislature, hampering the rational
discussion and implementation for certain policies and decisions.
The situation apparently weakened the prevailing competitiveness of
Hong Kong and hindered economic development. In Macau, ongoing
anti-corruption measures imposed by Mainland China inflicted the
first decline in gross gaming revenue since the handover of Macau.
As a leading and indispensable sector in Macau, the gaming industry
relates to various elements of the economy. The decline in gaming
revenue had already exerted adverse influences on other industries.
In the event that Macau fails to diversify its industry landscape
properly, its economy may be faced with further setback in the
future.

Despite a substandard performance from Hong Kong and Macau,
the Group’s businesses posted satisfactory results in 2014. With
respect to property in Macau investment business, we renewed
the leases for certain properties during the year with substantial
rises in new rental rates, which shall contribute to the overall rental
income and create a stable income stream for the Group in the long
run. In addition, results from Headquarters, the Group’s hair salon
business, exceeded our expectations following the introduction of
new business partners.

As we were pondering the market performance in year 2014 as a
whole, we noted that notwithstanding the governments of Hong
Kong and Macau had kept implementing measures in attempts
to contain the exuberance in local property markets, and had
further introduced new regulatory measures through the monetary
authorities to tighten credit in property lending, it did not have a
material adverse effect on the overall property prices, which had
only adjusted slightly. In certain segments of the market, for example
the lower-end residential properties in Hong Kong, there were even
signs of market trending upward. Looking forward, there could be
more measures from the governments of Hong Kong and Macau to
control the property markets in 2015, but property prices are unlikely
to fall significantly given that market is widely anticipating a delay in
the coming of a new round of interest rate rises. The Group will act
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN - & Ji 4 1+

responsibly for the interests of the shareholders and stakeholders
and make investment decisions based on principle of prudence and
discretion. The Group will also closely monitor the development in
both Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will primarily direct our
resources towards the property investment business, so that we may
capitalise on any opportunities arisen in the market to acquire top
quality properties capable of generating good returns, thereby further
expanding and enhancing our property investment portfolio that will
benefit our development in long run.

In 2014, the Group remained committed to repaying the society and
fulfilling corporate responsibilities. The Group and Headquarters
were recognised as a “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service again and received the “Hong Kong Corporate
Citizenship Award Logo” from the Hong Kong Productivity Council. In
the coming year, regardless of economic hardship, we will repay the
society by exerting the utmost effort on community care to help the
one in need and striving for the overall sustainability of the society.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
thanks to the management and all staff for their devotion and
contributions in different aspects to the Group in the past year, and |
would also like to express my greatest gratitude to our shareholders,
customers, business partners and other stakeholders for their trust
and support. Going forward, we will stick to our operating principles
to expand our business in a pragmatic and prudent manner.
Cooperation with partners will also be enhanced for mutual progress
in pursuit of magnificent results in business development of the
Group.

TSANG CHIU MO SAMUEL

Executive Chairman
Hong Kong
31 March 2015
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HECETRS

2014
—E—MF
HK$’000
BET T
Revenue W zs 32,115 30,721 +5%
Profit attributable to the owners A AR 14,489 16,398 -12%
Basic earnings per share FRERZF
(HK cents) () 4.77 5.50 -13%
Diluted earnings per share R ERT
(HK cents) (Pl 4.68 5.45 -14%
Total equity AR 4258 399,285 381,921 +5%
Net assets value per share EREEFE
(HK dollars) (BT 1.30 1.26 +3%
REVENUE PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE BASIC EARNINGS
Wi e TO THE OWNERS PER SHARE
K000 AT A 1 0 71 5 HE A
(B ¥ T ) (HK$’000) (HK$ cents)
(BT ) (7 1L)
40,000 35,000 30
30721 32,115 30,000 o5
30,000 28,647
25,000 20
20,000 16,398
20,000 15000 ) 14,480 15
11,209 10
10,000

10,000 5.50

5000 5 3.77 . 4.77
0 0 0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B0 AR A

OPERATION REVIEW

General Performance

Despite the uncertainties arising from, inter alia, the possible interest
rate hike, geopolitical tension in the Middle East and Ukraine and risk
of epidemic spread from West Africa, global economy in 2014 was on
a delicate recovery path with US leading the way through improving
economic and employment conditions. However as US tapered off its
Quantitative Easing monetary policy, it led to expectations of interest
rate hike in the US and thus caused market volatility during the
year. Hong Kong’s economy was very much in line with the external
economic environment and yet the weakening purchasing power of
the Mainlanders and the ongoing anti-gifting measures in Mainland
China had adversely affected the retail sales and rental markets in
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the Group delivered a net profit
of approximately HK$15,109,000, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.8% over last year’s profit of $16,938,000. The
decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the unrealized exchange
loss on RMB bank deposit and rising staff cost. Fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately HK$30,200,000 like the
previous year remained the major contributor to the Group’s net profit
for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS « & H J& &f i & 70 #r

The Group’s revenue increased approximately 4.5% from 2013 to
approximately HK$32,115,000 in 2014 while the gross profit was
increased 2.6% to HK$22,805,000. Other income increased by
94.4% to HK$7,509,000 resulting from additional high yield RMB
bank deposits interest income and increased dividend income
from securities investment. The administrative expenses increased
37% to $41,120,000 mainly due to the unrealized exchange loss
of $5,119,000 incurred during the year verses an exchange gain of
$2,481,000 derived on RMB bank deposit the year before.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$399,285,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$1.30. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$674,990,000 and HK$275,705,000
respectively.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT BUSINESS

Although the property investment market witnessed a 18% increase
in investment volume in 2014, the Group made no acquisition or
disposal. Asset values increased moderately across all property
sectors owing to the improved market sentiment and supply
constraints still facing the wider market. Fair value of our investment
properties increased by HK$30,200,000 during the year being 29%
more than the previous year. Return from leasing the investment
properties is about 6.2% comparing the gross rental income and cost
of investments.

The Group is optimistic about the prospects for the Macau economy
as a number of existing mega infrastructure investment projects and
tourism related development projects will continue to support the
economy at a sustainable pace in the coming few years. Property
prices still stand firm with upside trend. HK$2,410,000 rental income
was generated for the year from the Group’s property portfolio with
an average yield of about 5.7%. Towards end of the year, the Group’s
retail shop was leased out to a new tenant at a substantial rental
increment income stream of which would be reflected in 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS « & 2 J& & 5 [ o0 #r

In Hong Kong, the Group’s investment properties comprise an en-
bloc boutique hotel situated in Sheung Wan and some residential
units in Taikoo Shing. Rental income of approximately HK$8,508,000
was received in 2014 with investment yield being approximately
6.3%. During the year under review, there was growth in the recurring
income through positive rental reversion from new tenancy of ground
floor retail shop situated in Sheung Wan boutique hotel and high
occupancy in the Taikoo Shing residential properties.

HAIR STYLING BUSINESS

In 2014, the hair styling segment continued to be a stable and
healthy contributor of returns to the Group. For the year under review,
turnover of this segment amounted to HK$16,319,000 representing
an increase of 10.9% as compared with 2013 while segment
profit increased by 8.2% from HK$1,421,000 to approximately
HK$1,537,000. Increase in segment profit was mainly attributable to
the increased revenue derived from newly recruits while strenuous
effort was made to keep the fixed overheads down.

OTHER BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Turnover from the stock brokerage business segment decreased
by 9.7% to HK$3,150,000 compared with the previous year as the
securities market was still volatile during the year under review.
Segment profit decreased 59.8% to HK$247,000 in 2014 when
revenue dropped approximately HK$338,000 and administrative cost
rose approximately HK$59,000.

Money lending activities continued to generate positive results with
turnover recorded a decrease of 7.3% to HK$1,728,000 over the
previous year. Segment profit decreased 14.3% from HK$1,416,000
in 2013 to HK$1,213,000 mainly on account of lesser interest income
as old loans matured and staff cost increment. It is expected that
this segment business will remain stable in the coming year and the
management will as always take a more cautious approach in the
lending policy.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a cash and bank
balance including pledged bank deposits of HK$278,474,000
and net current assets of HK$34,562,000. The current ratio
(calculated as the current assets to the current liabilities) of
the Group as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 1.13
(31 December 2013: 1.32). The Group maintained a healthy
working capital position during 2014.

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. The Directors consider that the Group’s
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates was minimal.

During the year, the Group’s investment properties, prepaid
land lease payments and certain bank deposits were pledged
to two banks to secure the bank borrowing of approximately
HK$249,481,000, which is denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and bearing interest at floating rate. Neither the Company nor
the Group had any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2014 (31 December 2013: Nil). The Group had no
significant capital commitments as at 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total equity
of HK$399,285,000, HK$211,000 of fixed rate liability,
HK$249,481,000 of floating rate liability and HK$26,013,000
of interest-free liabilities, representing 0.05%, 62.48% and
6.51% of the Group’s total equity, respectively. The gearing
ratio (calculated as the total long term loan to the total
shareholders’ equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2014
was approximately 0.02% (31 December 2013: 0.06%).
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Employment Information

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately
a total of 39 employees (2013: 39). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$9,344,000 (2013: HK$8,817,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

Prospects

Looking into the year ahead, the global economy is expected
to move forward at a moderate pace on the premises US
economy will continue to strengthen even though other major
economies including Mainland China will maintain a relatively
slower pace of growth. Major uncertainties lying ahead would
be the great volatility in the global financial markets arising from
the changing expectation on possible interest rate hikes in US
and competitive devaluation of currency by various economies.
Nevertheless, the loose monetary policies adopted by major
economies such as the Eurozone, Japan and Mainland China
would cushion the risk of a global slowdown. As a global
finance centre, Hong Kong is not immune from challenges
faced by major economies around the world.

As the government recently imposed regulatory measures
to tighten credit on property lending, it is expected the
primary market property sales would slow down but with little
downward adjustment in property prices due to the sustained
demand and shortage in short term supply coupled with low
interest rate environment and yet investment expenditure
would become soft and sentiment turn cautious. Moving
forward, the Group will continue to explore new ventures
cautiously, particularly in its core business of property
investments in Hong Kong and Macau, to achieve medium
and long term sustainable growth and create maximum value
for shareholders. We believe the uncompromising attitude
in pursuit of excellence of our experienced and committed
management team will drive our continued growth in the years
to come.

HhALEESE (SRED) ARATR « —F—TEEHR

n. EEER
R-ZE—NNF+_-_A=+—H

13

N S

EEEETHRHNAE (T —=
F:39%) c AEBEZHEEE TR
BENBIZEENHG EmH LA
AHRFhH BE-_ZT—NFE+_A
—+—BILFE BEIRACRFE
BEEFHM) L AEEQ,344,000L( = F

— =% : 5%8,817,0007T) °

Iv. XHERE

EETEZREHEZE _T—MOF+—
A=t - BLEFEZREBRE(ZZF

—=F 8\

V. #AIE

R BEERGESERT

- BE

Hi T ELEE(BREPEAN)IER
Mk BHEREESRISER - A
‘REEHMHBEATHEERE - Hfx
BATRE NS FEHEMER - URERL
FRERNBEFUEREDSEHRER

MIEHBEENRE - BE MU

&

KERWETE  BARPEAME
RMRREBER - EMREZIRE
BRROER - ERERERB L

ERLEIRAEREANZEHER
ERETR DL E o

P I %

ERBRMOMEREERR  KEY
XEE BH-—FTHHVEHERA
P B » 1B B 7R SR 4B R 5 22 A
TR MEERRE MEER
REBRMTH EREFAKER
K REEREEBRE - REH
Ko AEEKEEERDEHEE
LEREBRBEBLRMYEREZD
EBOE  BRREPREATHE
B RBRAERKEE - HAR
5 BREEENZEELRRIBHK
A BANRBEREY  AEERF

R -



14 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

3 16

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2014, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed later in
the report.

THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.

The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.
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The Board and management team handle material price information
with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in a timely
manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the latest
developments.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprises seven Directors,
two of them are women, more than one-third of the Directors are
non-executive and independent of management, thereby promoting
critical review and control of the management process. The Board are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has
a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the Group’s businesses. Four of the Directors are executive, namely
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching, Deputy Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia and Ms. CHU
Ming Tak Evans Tania, and three of the Directors are independent
non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary,
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward. Each of Directors’ respective biographical
details is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors that the Board has
the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging their
duties as Directors in the best interest of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary
has the appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
financial matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the
Company.

HhALEESE (SRED) ARATR « —F—TEEHR 15

’ﬁ:‘%ﬁtﬁ&

ExeHEEEERREE TRIEERHR
BR - BEFGMRHERSE  MRRERAR
BERFER

3517 A
R-E—NF+_A=+—H EF2H+t
NEEHKETWMAABLLT  BB=Hh2—
BEVYREEEMIENTES  BUHIEEE
EE%E&ZEx%V EEeHREEEBIE
REEBARNAIER  R#EARRE] 2K -
%%A%ﬁ*ﬁK’ilﬁﬁ“‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁZ B R A K
B HPNMUEBEETANTES  IEMBR L
F(ITHRER)  SHRBEE(EIERE) B8
Mt s KBAELt  R=UEEAB I
HITES BIFFABRLEE  EEPELEE B
EREE - SEFZREFHBINAFTER
L[EEZRAAEE|—f-EFERE EF

REAUG SRR ABEN R TR
B A0 B OB % -
REE=F—ME+=A=+—AILES

EXe ENALTMRABRELRE=M
BYIFATERTZIREER  WEBTEE —
NEFABEEEXSHERNERYBE
BERZER @aRALEREREMB S
BB ZEEEREREER - RELTR
AMENR - AARIERBIZBEILIFATES
BEREHARRRZE I 2 EMER



16 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2014

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT -« 1 3£ & if it 4

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY #= oL oufb BUR

The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy) &H@R _-_ZE—=—F L AKEMNESTS% T/b
in September 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces the W% ([EZE€ % T/bBE]) - AR FER
benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board appointments RiEEESEeKEZ LS KBz - BE
will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company will ensure EE & WA Z (T 45448 LB A M A EEE
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of 1 @ KA FEHBERESESERELRKER @
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business. #3E R A E 2B RBUYE AR R XK
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity FE - KA REIRZEERBHBREZA @ B
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and FEETERAMER - & XL ER#ES= -
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills & & (B2t HFE) - BagbA R o

and knowledge.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board except
that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does
not have any direct or indirect material relationship with the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, 6 Board meetings have REZE_-_Z—NE+-_A=+—BI-FZE -
been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: EEeRT A% EEHEHELOT

Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of Board meeting held
HEESESERE
FEBTHESEERRY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

EEg BHRZEEE REEEE FHZEES

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel AR A4

(Chairman and the (FEFITHKABE)

Chief Executive Officer) 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0

Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching SRR E

(Deputy Chairman) (BIERE) 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia (2R ogu 5/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania kBA{fE 4+ 6/6 0/0 1/1 2/2
Independent Non-executive BV HHITESE

Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFAGESEE 6/6 2/2 0/0 2/2
Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary =HEALAE 6/6 2/2 1/1 0/0
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward BEELE 5/6 2/2 11 2/2

GENERAL MEETING JBE RO &

During the Year, the Company convened 1 general meeting on 14 WAFE » ARG R_ZE—NFH A +WEUH
May 2014 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. ZBE—ABREAE @ IAQAF ZREAE K
Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: e BEFHFEFBEOT

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HESERE
FIBITHERRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel s BA S A

(Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) — (F/E#7TE4E%) 11
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching SR E(FERE)

(Deputy Chairman) 1/1
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia BRIt 1/1
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KA+ 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUFHITESE
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFABE & 0/1
Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary EHEALE 0/1

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward AR 0/1
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DIRECTORS" TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
provided to all Directors related articles on regulatory updates,
management skills and corporate governance from The Journal of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, Hong Kong Institution
of Certified Public Accountant and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Each of the Directors had noted and studied
the above mentioned documents and that the Company had received
from Directors the confirmations on taking continuous professional
training.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with each
of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst other
things, their term of offices for a period of 2 years until terminated by
either party giving not less than one months’ prior notice in writing
to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.
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Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three members, two of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, Mr. WONG Tak
Ming Gary and one is executive director, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans
Tania. Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting, to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of the
Group steadlily.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia,
Mr. HUI Yan Kit, and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. HUI Yan Kit and
Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary were appointed as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company in July 2004 and September
2006 respectively. They have been the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company for over 10 years and 8 years.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2014, the Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward
and one executive Director, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania. Mr. HUI
Yan Kit is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Director and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

& In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note
14(a) to the financial statements in this annual report.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held 2 meetings to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior
managements of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration
packages for Directors and senior managements of the Company.
The recommended remuneration packages have been approved by
the entire Board.
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The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2014,
the members are Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary (the Chairman of the
Committee), Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward all of whom
are not involved in the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s financial
information (including the Company’s financial statements, annual
reports, interim reports and major comments on financial reporting
contained in the financial statements and reports), examining and
studying the Company’s financial reporting system and procedures
for internal supervision and control, and making recommendations to
the Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors
and auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings,
during which the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2014
were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board
Practices” of this report for the attendance record of individual
Audit Committee members. All these meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

° state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Auditors’ Report on page 43.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been
audited by BDO.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, BDO, the external auditor of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:
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REBE-T-—HNF+_A=+t—HLFE "
AEBEZIBZBMEBLEEZEAME
TSP R R RIER AT AR

2014 2013

—E-MEF —E—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Audit services ZE RS 570 570
Non-audit services FERZEBRTS - -
Total: S5F - 570 570

The Audit Committee reviews each year on the external auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The board has engaged a consultant company to conduct a review of
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems during the
year and is of the view that the systems of internal control adopted for
the year ended 31 December 2014 were assessed to be satisfactory
and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in safeguarding the
assets employed by the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 34 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze takes no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2014.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the AGM held on 14 May 2014, the adoption of a new Bye-laws
of the Company was approved by shareholders of the Company and
took immediate effect on 14 May 2014.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS AND

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders dispatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

AR
BERLEIWEERARRZUBRERRA

AME WA RARANEERSK - XL
ZHBBREENEME[EERSMEREA

BZEAME| -8R - RE EMHRAFEI.29
- BE2_FT-—NOF+_A=1T—HLLF
B BEREIEITIR+ANEZHERER

s -

E’\‘_ —UFERATEOBEMBITZRERT
K%L K A) A% SR L B AR N B B 4R R
WH—ZE—NFRA+HHEBIRFERK -

FR R HEA) B 45 3 Bl 1R

REBEBERMBREEERARFRR ZH
{% ARRERYVZREEERRBBZR

PN T E P IR E R FEERE - B
F'HEJ%LA&&HLVZEZIK’ATZE*%M& o R
BAFAERBEREHEEEEIRIHE -
TREARBZEEIREAEG LREREREZ
IR o o RRBFAREMZREL LB
VYZERRBRER  ETBRRETES -
FHh RERREFARBRREZRKIARR
RZBEMNENEARNFERE —RNETHRR
ZZ@I_IW FriZed < RBRFBE NN ZE

ANE= B 7 A3k (www.clh.com.hk) & & E%ﬁ =)

REERRRRERASE 2 &HEA



The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The analysis of the
principal activities and geographical locations of the operations are
set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 155.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the letter from the chairman, management discussion and analysis
from pages 4 to 6, pages 8 to 13 of this Annual Report. Description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company can be
found throughout this Annual Report. Particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2014, if any, can also be found in the abovementioned
sections and the Notes to the Financial Statements. The outlook of
the Company’s business is discussed throughout this Annual Report
including in the letter from the chairman from pages 4 to 6 of this
Annual Report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s authorized share capital
during the year. The movement in the issued share capital are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$87,501,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$126,477,000. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be distributed
to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital and
share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out on page 48 and in note 33 to the financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 17 to the financial statements. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on pages 157-160.

BANK BORROWINGS

The total bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014
amounted to HK$249,481,000 (2013: HK$222,365,000). Particulars of
borrowings are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$13,000 (2013: HK$5,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 156.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on page 31 of the Annual Report.

The Group regards the executive directors, director of a subsidiary
and the heads of functional departments as members of the senior
management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
were within the following bands:

B (SRED) ARATR « —F—TEEHR 29

DIRECTORS" REPORT - # = & # 5

EEEH A8

RARELRH  EBRSEEEABNEES
RAFRETE °

REBREHTES  —BHFRaANEENE
BT EASREIREEBKE -
ENEEMNEHREREABZISESENT

Number of individuals

AE

2014 2013
—E-ImEF —T-=F

Emolument bands [ e
Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z 2= #1,000,0007T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 71,000,001 702 % #2,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 72 000,001 7T 2 % #3,000,0007T - =
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 73,000,001 7T 2 % #4,000,0007T - 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 714,000,001 7T 2 %5 #5,000,0007T 2 2
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 755,000,001 7T 24 #6,000,0007T 1 R

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investment business and money lending business. The five
major suppliers of the Group were attributable to hair styling services.
The percentages of the sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 21.49%
— five largest customers combined 31.35%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 26.82%
— five largest suppliers combined 77.42%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and will be
renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated by either
party by giving to the other not less than six months prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years until
terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one month
prior written notice.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding
companies was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 41, brother of the Company’s
Deputy Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, and Executive Director,
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed as Executive Director
and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004 respectively. He is
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business development
and general management. Mr. Tsang is a director of ST (79)
Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and Barsmark Investments
Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders of the Company, and
a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of
ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Mr. TSANG holds a Master degree in Corporate Finance. He is
active in community services and serves for different organizations
in both Macau and Hong Kong. In Macau, Mr Tsang is a member of
Macao Chamber of Commerce Youth Committee, Standing Director
of Macau General Association of Real Estate and Deputy Director
of Macau Hoteliers & Innkeepers Association. In Hong Kong, he is a
General Committee Member of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies, a Member of the China Committee, Economic Policy
Committee and Small & Medium Enterprises Committee of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Commerce. In public services, Mr Tsang is
a Member of the Special Education & Rehabilitation Service Governing
Committee of Hong Kong Red Cross and a School Manager of the
Incorporated Management Committee of Hong Kong Red Cross John
F. Kennedy Centre.
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Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working with
international firms in building construction, hotel management, financing
and strategic investment.

Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, aged 38, brother of the Company’s Executive
Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Executive Director, Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed as Executive Director and
Deputy Chairman in 1999 and 2007 respectively. He is responsible for
the evaluation and implementation of business development strategies,
as well as investment activities. Mr. Tsang is also a director of ST (79)
Investment and Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the Company and
a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of ST
(79) Investment and Barsmark.

Before joining the Group, Mr. TSANG worked in a finance company
responsible for corporate finance functions, direct investments and
project financing.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 40, sister of Company’s Executive
Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Deputy Chairman, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Ching, was appointed as Executive Director in 2010.
She has been serving as director of a number of other subsidiaries
of the Group with the earliest appointment back to 2002. She is now
responsible for the sales and marketing of the Group, in particular the
residential property investment business segment. Ms. Tsang is also a
director of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark, substantial shareholders
of the Company and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the
holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 57, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.
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Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 41, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary, aged 39, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in 2006. He is a practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of both
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation
Institution of Hong Kong and also an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr Wong has over 10
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163), a listed
Company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, aged 40, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2011. He received his tertiary education
in Canada. Being an entrepreneur, Mr Au has been running for over
10 years businesses in various fields covering food and beverage,
interior decorations, trading in equipments, garment and property
investment.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tai Wai David, aged 50, was appointed in 2002 as
director of Century Legend Securities Limited, the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary licenced under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”) to deal in securities as well as a participant
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is a licenced
representative under the SFO and has over 22 years of experience
in the financial service sector in stock broking. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Chan had been a dealing director in regional securities
company. He possesses in depth knowledge and broad experience in
the operational and compliance aspects of a securities company. Mr.
Chan is in charge of the Group’s stock broking business segment and
enhances its business development.
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Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 45, was appointed as Financial Controller and
Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in Corporate
Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with public companies
listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for the financial and
accounting matters of the Group as well as listing compliance issues of
the Company.

Ms. Wong Yim Tsui Amy, aged 53, joined the Group in 1999 and was
promoted Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate Affairs in
2005. She is tertiary educated in Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of Human Resources
Management since 1991. Ms. Wong has over 20 years’ human resources
experience in various industries including finance, retail and servicing and
is responsible for the Group’s human resources management to cope
with corporate planning for business development.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i) RAEAB RO RIEBERD ZESR
Company

Name of company Number of Approximate
in which ordinary Ordinary percentage
shares/securities shares/ of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
RT5IAT FisZER,/ fRAKREZ
EEps BaEtE BRELER ®F S BHABESH
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching Beneficial interests The Company 749,250 0.24%
BREELE B KAF 749,250 0.24%
Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 6.30%

corporation (Note 1 and 3)
R EE ART 15 88T 6-30%

GEANE))
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 28.79%

corporation (Note 2 & 3)
R B ART Sy Wl 28.19%

GEZ8)
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Name of company Number of Approximate
in which ordinary Ordinary percentage
shares/securities shares/ of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
RTH2AR FisgER,/ FAEREZ
3] BHME BEREBER#F BHY BRE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 6.30%
Samuel corporation (Note 1 and 3)
BRREE REtEE RS Y N/N] 19,329,195 6.30%
(FE1&3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 28.79%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
R EE RS PN/ 88,275,577 28.79%
GEZSE)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia Beneficial interests The Company 1,860,000 0.60%
gt EiEnR /NG 1,860,000 0.60%
Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 6.30%
corporation (Note 1 and 3)
REtEE RS /NG 19,329,195 6.30%
(FiizE1%3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 28.79%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
R EE RS pN/NG] 88,275,577 28.79%
(Note 2 & 3)
Notes: P aE -
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments Limited. 1. 11t %5 % 17 B3 Barsmark Investments
Limited Bz A °
2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited. 2. It % & 5 M ST (79) Investment
Limited Bz A ©
3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST 3. Barsmark Investments Limited &

(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned by ST
Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued share capital of
which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of Fortune Ocean Limited
(a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching),
Conba Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel) and Ssky Investments Limited (a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG
Chiu Ching, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
are directors of Barsmark Investments Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited
and ST Investments. Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching is a director of Fortune Ocean
Limited. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments
Limited. Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments
Limited.

ST (79) Investment Limited 2 & %
TR A ST Investments Holding
Limited ([ ST Investments |) 2 & &
25 % B ° Fortune Ocean Limited
(—EHEBREELEERER
Z2AR) BEREERAF(—
MHEEEREEREERBEAZA
7)) K Ssky Investments Limited(—
MHEBALTE2EESBEZR
7)) & B B %5 # A ST Investments
=N —ZBBETRAR - THEL
£ YBREEAREBHELLA
Barsmark Investments Limited

ST (79) Investment Limited } ST
Investments 2 # £ - & BB K %
4 /& Fortune Ocean Limited 2 &
FoBBMALTEREEREARA
AlZEE - B &+ Al & Ssky
Investments Limited 2 &3 °



Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(ii) Interests in the Share options of the Company (i) REQDABREZEDS
Exercise
price Number Approximate %
Name of Director/ Date of grant of per Share of options of shareholding
chief executive share options  Exercisable period (HK$S) outstanding in the Company
BRITEE HARITE AERDEREZ
EE TEMBASHE RHUBREAS THES (B¥) BREHE BMABFDE
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans 22 May 2009 22 may 2009 to 0.31 8,930,087 2.91%
Tania —ZETNF 21 May 2019
AAELL AA=Z+=ZB ZZTTANF 0.31 8,930,087 2.91%
AAZ+ZHZE
—T-NEF
RFA-+—H
Ms. Sze Tak On 22 May 2009 22 may 2009 to 0.31 7,441,739 2.43%
ik —ETNF 21 May 2019
RFAZ+=B ZZTTAF 0.31 7,441,739 2.43%
AAR=t=B%
—ZT-NEF

ERA=-+—H
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of
the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2014, the Company had been
notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital.
These interests are in addition to those in respect of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.

3 G O A F) A Ay 5l A B
ety P A 2 MERE IR B

RZE—MF+_A=+—8  RBEZEH

NHE KM EICHRMIECETERRE
aaﬂﬁ NN Tl /o el /NI Tk
TIRAS% A L2 T ER R Em AR
ZL%MZDT WEER A LBE2ES
REZBITHAB ZHEZAINE -

Long position in shares B zHE

Approximate

percentage

of total

Number of shareholding

Name Nature of interests shares held HEEREZ

REREHE s RO B BRI

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 19,329,195 6.30%

Barsmark Investments Limited (F§5E£1) BN 19,329,195 6.30%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 88,275,577 28.79%

ST (79) Investment Limited (Fi3E1) 6ol £ 88,275,577 28.79%

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 35.09%
corporation (Note 2)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Fif3E1) R s 107,604,772 35.09%
(FfFEE2)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 35.09%
oorporation (Note 2)

BEREBR LA (M) A B 107,604,772 35.09%
(Fff3E2)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 35.09%
corporation (Note 2)

Ssky Investments Limited (M 5E1) SR A B RS 107'604’?72 35.09%
(FfF3E2)

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled 107,604,772 35.09%
corporation (Note 2)

107,604,772 35.09%

Fortune Ocean Limited (FffsE1)

RS EEE R

(BfaE2)
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Approximate

percentage
of total
Number of shareholding
Name Nature of interests shares held HEERE
REEHE ERME RO E BHABEDL
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Beneficial interest 50,996,250 16.63%
Limited (Note 3)
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) EailEn 50,996,250 16.63%
Limited (Fff5£3)
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 50,996,250 16.63%
(Note 3) corporation
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Ff3E3)  SiE#HPEE#ES 50,996,250 16.63%
Szeto International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 50,996,250 16.63%
(Note 3) corporation
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Fi#E3)  SEHAE#E T 50,996,250 16.63%
Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 3) Interest of controlled 50,996,250 16.63%
corporation
al%E F £ (I EE3) RIEHIEE RS 50,996,250 16.63%
Notes: B 3
1. Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly 1. Barsmark Investments Limited &2ST (79) Investment
and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited, the issued share Limited ¥ £ ST Investments Holding Limited %
capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-third by each of (i) Conba BESER  MACETRADHBOEERE
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG BERAR(—HHEBRELELEERBERA LA
Chiu Mo Samuel); (i) Fortune Ocean Limited (a company wholly and beneficially A]) : (i) Fortune Ocean Limited(—F&/H & BB %
owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (iii) Ssky Investments Limited (a company EREEmBERZAT) ¢ K(ii) Ssky Investments
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Limited(—EHEBHAX T2 EEREA 2 AR
BB =51k -
2. These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by 2. Itk % % {7 #8 Barsmark Investments Limited & ST
Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited. (79) Investment Limited B 25 A 2 B {7 4858
3. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by Szeto 3. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)
Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is wholly- Limited 75 FiSzeto Investments Holdings Limited
owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly 2EHE - HB BITRA A Szeto International
and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Szeto International Holdings Limited2&#A - At EER+T2EE
Holdings Limited. %55 Szeto International Holdings LimitedZ &
HEBEITRA -
BRUA EPRHEERSN - IBmEMAL(RRARIES

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executive of the Company had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

HTRABERRIN RIRBEES RAERHF
336{GFA R AIA T 176 2 B AL A Prac sk 2 X
D RAERAR D AR R TOKR °
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code provisions
same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report and most of
the recommended best practices in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in the Listing Rules except for certain areas of non-
compliance that are discussed in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A
Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the
scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external
audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI
Yan Kit, Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward. Two
meetings were held during the current financial year. Audit Committee
had met with the management of the Company and the auditors to review
the final results, considered the significant accounting policies, and
discussed with the management of the Group’s internal control system.
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee.

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.
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AUDITORS

BDO Limited have acted as auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
BDO Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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[INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Ty 57 A% R

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

FEEE  +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 44 to 155, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ming Wai

Practising Certificate Number P0O5682

Hong Kong, 31 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

o TN &S

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

2014 2013
—E-E ZE—=%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & BET T BETIT
Revenue & 5(a) 32,115 30,721
Cost of sales SHE RN (9,310) (8,500)
Gross profit EF 22,805 22,221
Other income =N o 5(b) 7,509 3,862
BRTESIRERERER
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BREZHBEEZ AYE
through profit or loss Yz 834 166
Fair value gain on investment properties BEWE 7 N FERE 17 30,200 23,500
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial HER[{EHE 7B EEEZ
assets Wea - 141
Administrative expenses 1THE S (41,120) (29,988)
Finance costs BB KA 7 (4,867) (2,292)
Profit before income tax BRPTS B AR R 8 15,361 17,610
Income tax expense FTiEfiA> 9 (252) (672)
Profit for the year EEERF 15,109 16,938
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEUBA
Items that may be reclassified HEKTHEES P EE R
subsequently to profit or loss Z2HEH .
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets =4 ] { iH & 7 Bf i & 20 350 197
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale LEMHRNE B EEL
financial assets R 20 - (58)
350 139
Other comprehensive income for the year ZAEEH M2 EKA 350 139
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2FEUKA &L 15,459 17,077
Profit for the year attributable to: UM B REEREERT
Owners of the Company KABIER AN 10 14,489 16,398
Non-controlling interests kR 620 540
15,109 16,938
Total comprehensive income for the year L T&EEEAEEZEKA
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company /NEIEZ 2N 14,839 16,537
Non-controlling interests R 620 540
15,459 17,077
HK cents HK cents
Bl AL
Earnings per share FRER 11
- Basic —HK 4,77 5.50
- Diluted — 4.68 5.45
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
o R NS

for the year ended 31 December 2014 o R —Z—pleF+—-H=+—H

2014 2013
—E—E —_F—=
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
i BT T BEETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE&EE 15 3,367 4,166
Investment properties REMHE 17 309,900 279,700
Prepaid land lease payments BN T EFIR 18 3,823 3,946
Available-for-sale financial assets At E B EE 20 20,924 20,540
Loan receivables U E R 21 29,800 590
367,814 308,942
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 53 73
Prepaid land lease payments TET T AR E FRIE 18 123 123
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFESRE RN B R
profit or loss FRENBEE 23 5,693 5,013
Trade and other receivables and EEREMBWRR KR
prepayments TEfT IR 24 14,358 13,694
Loan receivables e E TR 21 2,389 44,197
Trust bank balances held on behalf of REFEHA Z(E7ERTT
customers LR 25 6,086 2,402
Pledged bank deposits BERIRERTT I 5K 26 121,212 121,131
Cash and bank balances RNE RIRTTES 27 157,262 126,825
307,176 313,458
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables EEANEEN 28 8,986 3,781
Other payables and accruals E b fE A5 BR A FE 5T 7R 0B 14,026 11,252
Obligations under finance leases B A TR EHE 29 121 121
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE(FER) 30 249,481 222,365
272,614 237,519
Net current assets REBEEFEE 34,562 75,939
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRBAR 402,376 384,881
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
o R NS

as at 31 December 2014 ¢ R-ZE—pl#E+ - H=+—H

2014 2013
—E—-F —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo E BET T AT T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations under finance leases Bl & A A A 29 90 211
Deferred tax liabilities FEERRIEEE 34 3,001 2,749
3,091 2,960
Net assets EEFE 399,285 381,921
EQUITY R
Share capital A% 7 31 61,328 60,722
Reserves G 33 334,833 318,695
Equity attributable to the owners of RABEE ANEEER
the Company 396,161 379,417
Non-controlling interests JEVE R R 3,124 2,504
Total equity EREHm 399,285 381,921
On behalf of the Board RERESFE
2 aE KR
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
E2 E2

Director Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R NS

as at 31 December 2014 o R-ZT—#E+_-H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —_z—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M=k BET T BEETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 16 49,800 49,800
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments HihpE I BRI R FB A FIE 1,614 888
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NG E R 19 180,150 159,456
Cash and bank balances IRe NIRTTHER 27 133,892 55,184
315,656 215,528
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries B B A B3R IE 19 61,805 23,586
Other payables and accruals H i FE BRI N BT RIE 959 537
62,764 24,123
Net current assets REEEFRE 252,892 191,406
Total assets less current HMEERRBAERE
liabilities/Net assets BEFHE 302,692 241,205
EQUITY s
Share capital N Sil 61,328 60,722
Reserves B 33 241,364 180,483
Total equity R 302,692 241,205
On behalf of the Board RRESZE
ZRER KA
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
EF EF
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B o M A B H) R

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RAAREARERE
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital  Revaluation Share option Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests Total
(RitER)/
R RiOeE  EARE  ERRE  BRERE  RERA Rit FERER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTTL BETT BRI BETT BRI BETT BRI BB BBTTL
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=%-F—-H 59,634 147,930 146,189 6,410 3,921 (8,009) 360,979 1,964 362,943
Shares issued under share option R IEEEIRIEREIFTRIT 2
scheme (nofe 32) B3 (H3£32) 1,188 1,689 - - (o76) - 1901 - 1901
Transactions with owners RERARTZRS 1,188 1,689 - - (976) - 1901 - 1901
Profit for the year REERT - = = = = 16,398 16,398 540 16,938
Other comprehensive income ~ E2EUA
Revaluation of available-for-sale ~ Ef{TEHHE 7 BKEE
financial assets (note 20) (KizE20) - - - 197 - - 197 - 197
Release upon disposal of available- REERSHE 7BKEE
for-sale financial assets (note 20) & & (MizF20) - - - (58) - - (58) - (58)
Total comprehensive income for AEE2HUALE
the year - - - 139 - 16,398 16,537 540 17,017
At 31 December 2013 and R=E-=5+-f
1 January 2014 =+-AR=3-WE
o = 60,722 149,619 146,189 6,549 2,945 13,393 379,47 2,504 381,921
Shares option granted (note 82) B HERE(HE32) - - - - 537 - 537 - 537
Shares issued under share option R IEEEIRIER EIFTET 2
scheme (note 32) i (HzEs2) 606 1,299 - - (537) - 1,368 - 1,368
Transactions with owners RREEARTZRS 606 1,299 - - - - 1,905 - 1,905
Profit for the year REERH - - - - - 14,489 14,489 620 15,109
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2FMA
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale BT HE 7 HKEE
financial assets (note 20) (HtzE0) - - - 350 - - 350 - 350
Total comprehensive income for REE2ERALE
the year - - - 350 - 14,489 14,839 620 15,459
At 31 December 2014 R=E-ME+=A
=t-f 61,328 150,918 146,189 6,899 2,945 27,882 396,161 3,124 399,285
e The total balances of these equity accounts at the reporting date of  * RBEEA 2 ERERZ2EBBEEY
HK$334,833,000 (2013: HK$318,695,000) represent reserves in the 334,833,0007t (=& — =4 : ## 318,695,000

consolidated statement of financial position. T RERERE IR R 2 i -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HaBlaenE R

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—F=+—HFFE

2014 2013
—E-—MF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T ST T
Cash flows from operating activities REEKELECHERE
Profit before income tax & FT1S LA @ A 15,361 17,610
Adjustments for: FLA TR FIEIE L FH%E
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE
equipment 15 974 1,080
Fair value gain on investment properties EME 7 AN EWRE 17 (30,200) (23,500)
Provision for impairment on loan FEW B 2R E R
receivables 6 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT T A0 & IR
payments 18 123 121
Employee share option expense B B B X 32 537 =
Fair value gain on financial assets at BN FESER R B ER
fair value through profit or loss RRIEZHEEEY
NEEW S (834) (166)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERMHHEZWKEE
financial assets Z Wz - (141)
Bank interest income RITH B UA 5(b) (6,376) (2,889)
Dividend income from listed investments KE EMEEZIRBEWA 5(b) (1,040) (932)
Loss of disposals of property, plantand  HEWE - BEREEZ
equipment Eia 1 16
Finance costs B E R A 7 4,867 2,292
Operating loss before working capital 2B E B FAT 2
changes T EIE (16,581) (6,509)
Decrease/(Increase) in loan receivables  FEWEZSH A/ (5#Eh0) 12,592 (3,041)
Decrease in inventories FERL 20 63
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at &2 F{EFIEE KRB R
fair value through profit or loss FRIE B EE
w, () 154 (190)
Decrease in trade and other receivables %% % &z H fib fE U BE 2 %
and prepayments TES IR 1,623 5,525
(Increase)/Decrease in trust bank REFEHA ZE5ER1TEH
balances held on behalf of customers (3hn) R (3,684) 551
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables, BEREMIRR  Hib
other payables and accruals JE - BR SR K B R 3B
#n,/ CRd) 7,979 (2,573)

Net cash generated from/(used in) BRSNS (FTRE) 2
operations and operating activities R FEE 2,103 (6,174)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BEBEeRER

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

2014 2013
—E—IF —EB=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg=g BT T BEETIT
Cash flows from investing activities REEXBEEZRESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E Y% - ME M & & (176) (1,074)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHHEZWKEE
financial assets (34) (792)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HERfHE ZHHEEE 2
sale financial assets FriS sk 18 - 157
Increase in pledged bank deposits B R ER1T 17 5138 00 (81) (121,131)
Increase in bank deposits maturing HBiE =18 A 28 2 RITFER
beyond three months =N (24,105) (40,755)
Bank interest received BUERTTFI 2 4,089 2,889
Dividend received from listed investments UK E FHREZ KA 5(b) 1,040 932
Net cash used in investing activities WEXEGFFER €55 (19,267) (159,774)
Cash flows from financing activities FIEXBELEZHELSRE
Capital element of finance lease payments @i & &5 2 B AR Z %D (121) (121)
Interest element of finance lease payments g & &~ % 2 K 225 7 (15) (15)
New bank borrowings FTERITIEE 39,990 207,594
Repayments of bank borrowings EBERITEE (12,874) (41,794)
Loan interest paid ERERFE (4,852) (2,277)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 247 @ARRR (D 2 RS 3k 18 1,368 1,901
Net cash generated from financing activities @& 2K FT1SIR & /F 58 23,496 165,288
Net increase/(decrease) in cashand BEE2RBELZEY
cash equivalents #in, GRd) B8 6,332 (660)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—HAZHER
1 January HEEEY 46,146 46,806
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=-—B=+—H2Z
31 December HeRBESEEY 52,478 46,146
Analysis of the balances of cashand ¥&RELZEY>
cash equivalents EER DT
Cash and bank balances as stated RERE IR R PR 2
in consolidated statement of B RIRTTA
financial position 157,262 126,825
Less: short term deposits with maturity W BB=EAE—FRN
beyond three months but within FH 2 AR
one year (104,784) (80,679)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-ZA=+t—-HZRER
31 December REEEY 52,478 46,146
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3K M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—F=+—HFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s
registered office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of business
is at Unit 906, 9th Floor, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”)
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 16. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as
the Group hereinafter.

The financial statements on pages 44 to 155 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 31 March
2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EGE & I

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs

(a)

New or revised HKFRSs - effective 1 January
2014

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2014:

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable Amount Disclosures
HKAS 36

Except as explained below, the adoption of new or
revised HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism
is considered equivalent to net settlement. The
amendments are applied retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not have
any offsetting arrangements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014 # %2 —

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(a)

New or revised HKFRSs - effective 1 January
2014 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 - Recoverable
Amount Disclosures

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose
the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit (CGU) to those periods in which an impairment
loss has been recognised or reversed, and expand the
disclosures where the recoverable amount of impaired
assets or CGUs has been determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal. The amendments are
applied retrospectively.

The adoption of HKAS 36 does not have any
material impact on the Group’s financial position or
performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EGE & I

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Presentation of
Financial Statements®

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements®

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers*

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle!

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle®

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

e Effective for annual periods beginning, on or after 1 January
2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning, on or after 1 January
2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning, on or after 1 January

2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014« EHZ =%

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Presentation of
Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to encourage
entities to use judgement in the application of HKAS
1 when considering the layout and content of their
financial statements. In addition, an amendment is
made to HKAS 1 to clarify the presentation of an entity’s
share of other comprehensive income (OCI) from its
equity accounted interests in associates and joint
ventures. The amendment requires an entity’s share of
OCI to be split between those items that will and will
not be reclassified to profit or loss, and presented in
aggregate as single line items within those two groups.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements.

2y

2. T

W/

(b)

UEGE &

—EF=A=1t—HIFE

.

1] (%
EAEERERNIETR
RIETEBMBHREER
(&)
ERGSTHERFEIH 2L

i — 2B REK
BESEAFIHKZEBIIEE
SEERBTEREMBHREZ
HmREANAKERAE B
AERI 551 5% 528 AR A T o b oh
BEI BB EE 1R ARS
NEEREE NI REGEDRE
ZIRAEREVEEREGEEM
EHEBA - ZIEFTEREEE
HEMEERAREE KRBT
GENOIEEEE2EHAEFR S
P - R R P E 2B B R 2L BB
RE—IEE 27 -

\:1

:F

1

o
e
(=5

KA RT3 7 B 5
)

L=k
Zaz
N=d

\1:11 rmt

ERETERE27HR 21&
BB mR 2R E
%@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ

SRR A

?ﬂiﬁﬁ *‘Em/ﬁ



56 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EGE & I

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014« EHZ =%

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EGE & I

for the year ended 31 December 2014« # 7 —F—F - F=4+—HIFF/&F

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2.

HKFRSs (CONTINUED)
(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Ildentify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs.
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
these new or revised HKFRSs will have any material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(c)

New Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial
statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation of financial
statements will apply to the Company in its first financial
year beginning on or after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
financial year ending 31 December 2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact on
the Group’s financial position or performance, however
the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, would have
impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The statement of
Financial Position of the Company will be presented
in the notes rather than a separate statement and the
related notes need not be included, while generally the
statutory disclosures will be simplified.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments which are stated at fair
value. The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Business combination and basis of
consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below) made up to 31
December each year. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are excluded from consolidation from the
date that control ceases. Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by another HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments, in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

= exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue and other income is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably on the following bases:

(@) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the
customer and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured. This is usually
taken as the time when the goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods.

(b) Revenue from rendering of services is
recognised when the relevant services are
rendered.

(c) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable.

(d) Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

(e) Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the relevant lease terms.

(f) Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Buildings held under leasing agreements are
depreciated over their expected useful lives of 38 years
or over the term of lease, if shorter.

Depreciation on other assets is provided to write off the
cost less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

10 - 33 1/3%
20 - 33 1/3%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles 33 1/3%
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
(note 3.8), such property is accounted for in accordance
with the policy of property, plant and equipment up to
the date of change in use. Any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is dealt with in revaluation reserve. On disposal
of the property, the relevant amount in the revaluation
reserve is transferred to retained profits as a movement
in reserves.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

Investment properties

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as
if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the reporting date reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at
the date of change in use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. E B e G EOR M (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 3.9 ¥FHBEERE
Prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and BEENRBLREEZREAN
equipment and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries A Y BBy - TR A &R
are tested for impairment whenever there are A - %% B KR AR
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be R B AR 2 = BEITH
recoverable. ﬁiﬂ‘]fiﬁ o
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense BEBEBZEE ZRAERD
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s E A Y el & 58 2 &R 10 B B 7R
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The RFEX - Tl E B/ RBRT
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting AN = 1= R=—0 5 W N S &l
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In BEMEPRSE ° £aL G
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows FEER  =ERARIATER
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax REEARKRBESREARE
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of HIRE - 2R ERREIBAT
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset. MBS E s EB ZEENRZ

BEZBERR -

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where RAFBBENS  WRZEE
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely WAEERBOHBLIREME
independent from those from other assets, the EZBRERA - QILAGEBE L E
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest ERERAZETRNEEARI (A
group of assets that generate cash inflows WEELESMN)RETETKRE S
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, o Bt M EEM@AET
some assets are tested individually for impairment and AR - HPBERSESE
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. B EmEETAR -

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a MENEEEE 2 Al E 458
favourable change in the estimates used to determine ZEFAEBEENES - HMES
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent BAIFLALRL - EEEZEREE
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the BT 1588 M I 2 e 2 6 (B e
carrying amount that would have been determined, net BmEEZEEE(EHNRITE
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss Sk H#ESH) ©

had been recognised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of
such assets, are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligation
under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under
finance lease agreements corresponds to those
applied to comparable acquired assets. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced
by lease payments less finance charges.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Assets acquired under finance leases
(Continued)

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

When a land occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property (note 3.8), such property is
accounted for in accordance with the policy of
property, plant and equipment up to the date
of change in use. Any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value
of the land is dealt with in assets revaluation
reserve. On disposal of the land, the assets
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained
profits as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e 3K M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—F=+—HFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.10 Leases (Continued)

F e 5T BURMEE (48)

3.10 HA(E)

Management determines the classification of financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation
at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

(iv) Assets leased out under operating (iv) HFEREEARBRKEHE
leases as the lessor HWHBEZEE
Assets leased out under operating leases are BELCLHELHEENE
measured and presented according to the nature EREREEHEFER
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in 23 - B RiEE
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are THIRERYTEE 2
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset = EEEBEF A%
and recognised as an expense over the lease MHEE2REE RN
term on the same basis as the rental income. HREEWA ZHBRE
LR TR B
Rental income receivable from operating leases #8 T 4 e U AR < M A
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line REHRERRZE
basis over the periods covered by the lease HENEmRER
term, except where an alternative basis is more WA EH A BT F P
representative of the time pattern of benefits WM EREOEE
to be derived from the use of the leased asset. B4z BEEER A
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit BroN o FTIR 2 A E
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net BRERERTEREE
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals KEHFHONZTH 2 —
are recognised as income in the accounting B8 o SR & R H B
period in which they are earned. Bz &t B R AU
A s
3.11 Financial assets 3.11 MKEE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.

U]

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent financial assets held for
trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term, or it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions or
using a valuation technique where no active
market exists. Fair value gain or loss does not
include any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest income
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies in note 3.5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014« EHZ =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost. Gain
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the loans and receivables are derecognised
or impaired as well as through amortisation
process.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets are classified as available-for-
sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from a change in the fair
value, excluding any dividend and interest
income which are recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in note 3.5,
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses
(see the policy below) and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair
value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

3.11

&R EURMEE ()

MBEEGE)

BB EERE
REHRSARBHMBEE(R
DFEF B KX 18 a8 Bk T BE B
ZHBEERIN) UEEEER
FREMEBRERR

ERFBEEEZEBRERR
BREIEAKREBRERAB— 1
FHALETIBREHZARE
2

= BEFEALREARTHR
£
= ERAEX - HlanKees

TEEENFERAE

- EBEBABREAREES
WENETEBMBE
A

— R T AR
REEBRYEH AL
REHEEZEAS
B R

- REBRAIAZREZA
FEABEBIEHTHKRE
ERERA -

-G EECERSENH
BIEBTRZANGEE 2 A5
ARBEETREEANTERD Z
AIRBHIE - 25 RBHIE
BRERESERAEEGEBAZ
NEMRAREREEEEZE
AV HE A 2 B 2R 3k A A R R
LR E g o



HAd g e (SRH) AIRAF .

ZR— VAR AR 75

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—F=+—HFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised
cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

U

(ii)

Financial assets carried at amortised
cost (Continued)

Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale and
stated at fair value are not recognised in the profit
or loss. The subsequent increase in fair value is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business less any applicable
costs necessary to make the sale.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at
the reporting date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of income tax expense in
profit or loss.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences. This involves the comparison
of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements with their respective
tax bases at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. E B e G EOR M (48)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.13 FiBBizastRE (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if MEEREZERAEEBIEER
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from SNFER(EBE RN B
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) EXRBEMEL XTI EE
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects A REFEAMNKEE - AT
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss. TUBRRLEELEHEEE K

BfE -

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable BRIEAREE A5 B B ERS =
temporary differences arising on investments in B KERRE8ELA R &
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control RIMAZEE - HIREHRB A
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is AIEEZERTEGRRZR - H
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse EERIAE B HE TAER ©

in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at REHIEERBEERERBEESR
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the _Réi%“ IR E A 2 R G
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are H(TKEEE)  EREMEAR
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. RikE HHE @BITIRBERTT ©
An exception to the general requirement on determining BT EETERBSREAT
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax REEMEZ —RBEEE G
amount is when an investment property is carried at ’Eiﬁ NEREMERBER
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless BEETERIF 4058 [RE Y ]
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts ?ﬁ’&?fﬁ’iuﬂﬁﬁq o BRIEHE TEH
on these investment properties are measured using the HH - GARSHREMEZER
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment ERIBS B AR RS A HIRE
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting HeRBHERSREMEME
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment RAMEGTE - BIREWMER]
property is depreciable and is held within a business TIE IR EEREREERE
model whose objective is to consume substantially all VI B S 28K 5D KR
the economic benefits embodied in the property over mMIEBAEE 2 EBEREALRA
time, rather than through sale. BER ARSI SEER -

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are REHIBEEXBRBEZEHRN
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive BamR A2 E KA B
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that R AMZEEEXBEEAR
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income HEf2mBAKEZERRAS
or directly to equity. Mt ACZEESR - AR

BB HERR o



Hal g e (RE) ARAR « —F—

V0 4 47 79

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2014« EHZ =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

3.14

(@)

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@)

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15

3.16

3.17

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. ETEEGFHHEORME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Share-based employee compensation

3.17 UROXNzEEMME(F)

(Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profit/
accumulated losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.18 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.6).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Bank borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Obligation under finance leases

Obligation under finance leases are measured at initial
value less the capital element of lease repayments (see
note 3.10(ii)).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, accruals and amounts due to subsidiaries)
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantees contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.19

3.20

Financial guarantees contracts (Continued)
The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 3.20 if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee and the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the current carrying amount i.e. the amount
initially recognised less accumulated amortisation,
where appropriate.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. All
provisions are reviewed at each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

3.

T

3.19

3.20

o 5B R A (4

BBEREQE)

MNP ERBELERAN 2 ERE
BREFRFHNEBaNEHES
PIEL M BERZEA - 1t
Sh - HERT A AR EERA
SEETERRBEEAASKE
RESHEAPBHRITREE
(BN 2 7 3R & BB B 5T # 85
(fH@EMA)) - BIERSBE (R
1EFIFE3.20) o

BRERIRER
EAKEREAESMHMEER
AREAR I EN S IABER
B 2R TE S E B AR - YA
SRR RE T ZBEEL A S
FAzBERAT  BIERE R
e ME¥ZKEESEK 8
BHETEEEAAEXHZR
Brtiefm - TERBERER
& HAFE] VE e AT 1 5 B A
RERER 2 REMRE -

i 78 3 th AR ) 25 2 AT BE MR
K- REZEERSBELA
F2fhEr IR EEEE
RERBE - ERDEERN S
Z A RE MR AR E B BR SN o BRIE
BEOKENS 2 A EERE
BREZHLE-EHZHEIFEAE
BAREE 2R 2 RREHT
RESECBEAEENTEER
HABE -



AL s (SR FIRAF « T PUFEFEH 85

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UEGE &

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—F=+—HFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21

3.22

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s

parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i

(ii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of receivables

The policy for impairment of receivables is based on, where
appropriate, the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of the receivables and on the management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, which is based
in part on current creditworthiness and past collection history
of each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional provision for impairment may be
required.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 17, the Group’s investment properties
were revalued at the reporting date by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers latest completed transactions
and information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, please refer to note 17.
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S(a). REVENUE 5(a). P ti
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, derived from the FR - KREAREBRETLEBLRDER
Group’s principal activities and recognised during the year is ZWas (AR B 2 &8 ¢
as follows:
2014
—E—-mF
HK$’000
BETT
Hair Styling SRR ET 16,319 14,718
Brokerage and commission income Kime RESKA 2,647 2,715
Interest income from money lending BEERRELEL Z2F B WA
and stock broking 2,231 2,638
Gross rental income from investment REEEMHE 2SR A
properties 10,918 10,650
32,115 30,721
5(b). OTHER INCOME S(b). EABUKA
2014
—E-mEF
HK$’000
BT T
Bank interest income SRTTHI B HA 6,376 2,889
Dividend income from listed investments KB FHi&E 2 K2 A 1,040 932
Sundry income HETEUA 93 41

7,509 3,862
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. mHEER

The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared BIETHER TFAERRHTES UH
segment information based on the regular internal financial BEAEAEEXBAK BN 2ER
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for DA R ZE S o KRIE 2 NELBF
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s FEERE - REBED R H &5 20
business components and review of these components’ REDIER - R 2R THITES
performance. The business components in the internal (FBELERRE) 2EBAEAKRE S Y
reporting to the executive directors, the chief operating BIEAEEEEERMREEETE -
decision-makers, are determined following the Group’s major REBIRED AT OEKLE DB o

product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following four operating segments.

Hair Styling* - Provision of hair styling and SRIEE — EEBREERR
related services in Hong Kong 51 X 48 B8 AR 75

Money lending - Provision of commercial and BeE — EEBREEER
personal loans in Hong Kong FLAEK

Stock broking - Provision of stock broking IR EZ 48 — EEBREBREL
services in Hong Kong 42 PR 7%

Property investments - Investing in commercial and MERE — BEMRNBFRE
residential properties for its BIZEEREE
rental income potential and VI ERES
for capital appreciation in W A& B A
both Macau and Hong Kong HBE

* Renamed from “Health and beauty services” to “Hair Styling”. i HIEREEERRG L ARt -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Segment revenue

6. rEEFH(SD)
2 £ 4

BUE2Hmo BB D AEE 2 Wam Kk E
Bzt

Segment profit

2 2B R 2 EBE A
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF [EESEE —T-NF fEEEe

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T BT T BT

Hair Styling ERIRET 16,319 14,718 1,537 1,421

Money lending BE 1,728 1,865 1,213 1,416

Stock broking rELL 3,150 3,488 247 615

Property investments VIR E 10,918 10,650 21,604 18,595

32,115 30,721 24,601 22,047

Unallocated other income RO B E AU A 3,554 2,060

Exchange (loss)/gains, net B X (GE) W55 (5,119) 2,481
Fair value gain on financial BT A Z AFEWKZ

instruments 834 307

Corporate staff costs NE B TR (4,366) (3,765)
Other corporate and HEMR e RADERY

unallocated expenses (4,143) (5,520)

Profit before income tax M FT1S 8% BT 4 Al 15,361 17,610

Revenue reported above represented revenue generated from

external customers.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs. Segment
results exclude certain interest income, dividend income,
exchange losses/gains and fair value gain on financial

instruments which arise from assets which are managed on
a group basis. Segment results also exclude corporate staff
costs and corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to
the executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. o #lb&ErRH(48)
Segment assets and liabilities STHEEREE
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BEETIT
Segment assets DEPEE
Hair Styling SRR 3,160 2,327
Money lending ==t 32,971 45,097
Stock broking [EEF S 27,452 23,980
Property investments MERE 322,406 296,562
Total segment assets DEEEAAEE 385,989 367,966
Available-for-sale financial assets AHE B EE 20,924 20,540
Financial assets at fair value through 1272 F{EZIBR R A8 2= BR 1 R 18
profit or loss 2B E 5,693 5,013
Pledged bank deposits EEAIRITER 121,212 121,131
Short-term bank deposits R HRERTTIF 5K 133,991 49,435
Other corporate and unallocated assets H A7) &R DR EE 7,181 58,315
Consolidated total assets AHEEBRE 674,990 622,400
Segment liabilities DEEE
Hair Styling SRR 1,461 1,258
Money lending BE 82 88
Stock broking eSS 9,279 3,942
Property investments EZ g} 62,426 62,475
Total segment liabilities SEE REEE 73,248 67,763
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBAE 3,001 2,749
Bank borrowings RITEE 198,000 169,000
Other corporate and unallocated ERrRADEEE
liabilities 1,456 967
Consolidated total liabilities SEHBaEesE 275,705 240,479
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. 4 &Rk (45)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHREERERE(E)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERESBRBEEIES D BEER
allocating resources between segments: ms
- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other = FFEEENDEZAIZE®RD S
than corporate assets and available-for-sale financial (RRIEERAIMHHE ZHKE
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or E - EAFEIERREBHEE
loss, certain short-term bank deposits and pledged MBI EE  LAREA
bank deposits which are managed on group basis; and AREEE A TREBRITHE
A REEBRITERERI) - &
- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other — FMEABHPEREEZA KD
than deferred tax liabilities and certain bank borrowings (EERBEEERIRESEES
which are managed on group basis, and corporate BrEaTROBERRARAR
liabilities. BRIN) o
Other segment information Hi o 2pE R
Fair value gain on Additions to specified Depreciation and
Interest income investment properties Finance costs non-current assets amortisation
RENEZ KeFng
FEKA AYERE HERE BEZRE HERRES
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
=il  Bald  Baid BiE EdlE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT | BBTL | A%Tn | BETrD | E%TR | BRTR | E%Th | BETID | B%Tn | AR
Haf Stylng R - - - - - - 5 269 127 130
Money lending A8 1,728 1,865 - - - = - = - =
Stock broking ety 503 173 - - - - 38 49 H 54
Property investments $1£% & 3,872 272 30,200 23,500 1,218 1,249 16 12 530 670
6,103 2,910 30,200 23,500 1,278 1,249 59 350 698 854
Unallocated AR 2,504 2,617 - - 3,589 1,043 17 1,132 399 347
Total ) 8,607 5,627 30,200 23,500 4,867 2,29 176 1,482 1,097 1,201
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information

The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the services
were provided or the goods were delivered.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the
specified non-current assets and revenue from external
customers, analysed by the geographical location.

B E R (48)

i EE R

EEERDEE ATBREVEEEZ
IERBEE) Z2WRUBETIRIEEES
BREMESD - REZMEMNE Y
BIEERBEREXERNEZALEE
ﬁj\ o

T ARIEEFRBEEEmMERK
BN EFRzWEz T (R ENE
DHT) °

Specified non-current Revenue from external

assets customers
EERBEE REIIMFEFE 2 W=
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF [ 2 =F | ZE—NF | =T =4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T ook e
Hong Kong (domicile) 7 (FfEis) 255,581 228,137 29,705 28,237
Macau JEPS 61,509 59,675 2,410 2,484
317,090 287,812 32,115 30,721
Information about a major customer EHE—BXEEFWER

Revenues from one customer of the Group’s property HREAEEMERED Bz —LZEF 2
investments segment amounted to HK$6,900,000 (2013: #5478 #6,900,000 0 ( =& — =4 : # ¥
HK$6,900,000) which represented 21.5% (2013: 22.5%) of the  6,900,0007T) @ HE RN AE@U21.5% (=
Group’s revenue. T—=14F :225%)°
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RUERA
2014 2013
—E-E —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest charges on finance leases BRE AT EFZ 15 15
Interest charges on bank loans wholly ZBRAEF RN L EREERE 7 #R1T
repayable within five years ERZAERX 3,880 =
Interest charges on bank loans not EAEARAFARIMER 2 RIT
wholly repayable within five years BRZABRE 972 2,277
4,867 2,292
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, BRASMITRITEECRERR
including term loans which contain a repayment on demand BREBEERGZE 2FTEIEER
clause, in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set HHEREREEBRAZEHER
out in the loan agreements. For the year ended 31 December HE_Z—NMF+=-A=1+—HIF
2014, the interest on bank borrowings which contain a B ESBEREREEKRRZRITEE
repayment on demand clause amounted to HK$4,825,000 ZH B ARAE4825000T(ZFE—=

(2013: HK$2,081,000).  : #¥2,081,0007T) °
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8.  PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.  BRFTISBL A i A

2014
—E-IF

HK$°000
BET T

BRETSTADEME KR, (GEA)
THIE B RFI8 -

Profit before income tax is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of prepaid land lease &~ + 30 7R & B A (M3 18)

payments (note 18) 123 121
Auditors’ remuneration % B AT BN < 617 615
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB KREITE(M:E15)

equipment (note 15) 974 1,080
Employee benefit expenses (note 12) € SR 2 (fizE12) 25,053 22,068
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BEMREZEE

plant and equipment 1 16

Provision for impairment on loan FEWE k2 R E R

receivables 6 =
Rentals received/receivable from Bl RIS EMERSRERE

investment properties less direct B #650,000L (= —=4F

outgoings of HK$650,000 (2013: 75 1446,0007T )

HK$446,000) (10,268) (10,204)
Operating lease charges in respect of: T3l &IB 2 & LRAF X

— Buildings —&F 3,414 3,391

— Motor vehicles —5H 606 606
Exchange loss/(gains), net & B E, (WEs ) F58 5,119 (2,481)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. BB X

2014

—E-mE

HK$’000

BT T

The tax charge comprises: TRIEZ [ BIE

Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax ~ BERFHIE — HEFSH - =
Deferred tax (note 34) EIERLIE (FI5E34) 252 672
252 672
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9.
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, no Hong Kong profits tax was provided in the financial
statements as the relevant group entities either did not derive
any assessable profit in Hong Kong or had unused tax losses
brought forward to offset against the current year’s assessable

profits in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries in Macau are liable to Macau Profits Tax at the rate

of 12% (2013: 12%).

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

—EF=A=1t—HIFE

F*ﬁ HEEE HEIEEAE/’EFEEH

FERTR T - sk LAKB) A 4 6 A T S
BHREAFERE B 2 ERTER
WL B B IS SR R AT IR B S A 1S 1
-

*ETF?%F%E?}%%EEIJ&%%IJ Ui vl
MEBARIEZEI12%(—ZE—=F :12%)
2 R BARPIFIE %Ro

IR ESNEMNZERRE

profit at applicable tax rate is as follows: HERWOT ¢
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Profit before income tax R PS5 A g A 15,361 17,610
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% L‘A?i%}iiﬁé‘ 16.5% (== 2,535 2,906
(2013: 16.5%) in Hong Kong —=%F :16.5%):T B 2 FH1E
Effect of different tax rates of Eﬁi\’rm AREREE Y (94) (252)
subsidiaries operating in Dy YNCIRNE v
other jurisdictions wE
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TT?D/JEZE%SEZ%R % 3/ = 3,016 2,222
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue EERTRIMA Z B8 (6,178) (3,923)
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised $$f§bﬁﬁiﬂ&¢fﬂiﬁ§w (589) (561)
tax losses utilised this year HIEEE G E
Tax losses not recognised as deferred RIERBELEFHIBEEEZ 1,844 564
tax assets M5 E1a
Others HAh (282) (284)
Income tax expense Fri5 i f 2 252 672
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10.

11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the

Company for the year includes a profit of HK$59,582,000
(2018: a profit of HK$1,707,000) which has been dealt with in

the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of

HK$14,489,000 (2013: HK$16,398,000) and the weighted
average number of 303,626,000 (2013: 297,897,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of

HK$14,489,000 (2013: HK$16,398,000) and the weighted
average of 309,896,000 (2013: 300,974,000) ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, after adjusting for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share is calculated based on the weighted
average of 303,626,000 (2013: 297,897,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average of
6,270,000 (2013: 3,077,000) ordinary shares deemed to be
issued at no consideration as if all the Company’s outstanding
share options had been exercised.

10.

N/NESIE7 ZE DN 3 e N S
F

a

ANARHEAARMMAFELRE &5
8 #59,582,000 2 AE(ZE—=
& FEBE1,707,0007T) © ERA
RN IERMRPER -

R ELF
BREAZFDREARNRR ZHEE A
JE(E R KB 14,489,000L (=& —=
& : B #16,398,0007T) M ERE %
77 2 303,626,000 % (= & — =
297,897,000 0% ) I i/ A% 2 h4E F 15 &

.
FTE o

BREERFNDIBRIBEARR ZEA A
e KB 14,489,000 (=& —=
1 516,398,000 ) MGt A A
BEEBEELTBER Y EFELAREZE
N EE 1T E SN 5 80309,896,000% ( ==
— =4 : 300,974,000/% ) & 3@ A% =~ Hn
BEHEETE - RtEEREEEF
FTiR A 2 Emak g F 8RB F
AN E 317 2 303,626,000 ( —ZF—=
 : 297,897,000 % ) i@ B% 2 04
FHEMMIMA R R Z A HARITE
BRECETEMGEARBEEEITZ
6,270,000 (== — =4 : 3,077,000
B%) LAk nETFHEETE -
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UEGE &

—EF=A=1t—HIFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 12. 18 BAEAB S (R B M)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTYS)
2014 2013
—E-IF —=F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T ST T
Directors’ emoluments (note 14(a)) Z=2Me (isE14@) 15,709 13,251
Other staff costs: HME THA :
— Wages, salaries and staff benefits —IE HFekEIRET 8,515 7,991
— Commission — A& 469 474
— Retirement benefit costs —RRE R AR 360 352
25,053 22,068
RETIREMENT BENEFITS 13. BIRMEF

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions to the directors, amounted to HK$480,000
(20183: HK$469,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2013: nil).

BIEESRBESEERBBEM 258
MR FéﬁiwlﬂﬁlJ(_ff?EwL—H
—HEER) AEEZEBELER
ERARIL ZRHMEATE /i\ummﬂ
FrEI([RESETE]) REEWREES
MR BERESE BEERERE
BYEZEEBBRAZ5% RS
W WASZTAMBEBERA ERTA
RS AHEBKRALRE-_Z—WF
NA—BERBE25000TENES
#530,0007T ° M % &t &l < it KENE 55
E °

AEEZRESHEHRER(BEX
NEFEZHRK) KB 480,000 (=
T— =4 : #5%469,0007T) ERAEF
EHER DR o B85S M i
BMOREBERZBEBKE(ZFT—=
FE) -
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14. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 14. FEHNE I i m 5 &
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=#M2
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and ENRENEEZ 2MEBEEDR
payable to the directors are as follows: T
Employee
Salaries Retirement share
and Discretionary benefit option
Fees  allowances bonus* costs expense Total

it FERER  MERAD BARARA BEEREMX it
HK$000  HK§000  HKY000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
BRTn  BRTn BRTn BRTn ERfn BRTR

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E-mE+ZA

Zt-HLEE
Executive Directors HIES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel SRHEE - 2,646 2,000 6 - 4,652
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania KHELt - 888 200 46 - 1,134
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching ERBLE - 2,844 1,600 3% - 4,482
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syia SRma L - 2,784 2,000 30 537 5,351
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit STARLE 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary ERRLE 30 - - - - 30
Mr, Au Chi Wai Edwarg BAffs ) - - - - 2
920 9,162 5,800 120 537 15,709
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE_Z-=%F1_FR
=+-ALLEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel SRR - 2,406 1,500 6 - 3,912
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania RHERL - 840 150 43 - 1083
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching ERBLE - 2,604 1500 3 - 4,142
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syia e - 2,544 1,500 30 - 4,074
Independent Non-Executive BUkHTER
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit TARLE 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary EEBLE 30 - - - - 30
Mr. Au Chi Wai Edward BEEEE 30 - - - - 30
0 8,394 4,650 17 - 13,251
& The discretionary bonus is performance—related with the basis * BBTELRTNEEeET 2

determined by the Remuneration Committee. FAEER R IF B o
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14. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 20183,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include four (2013: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above and the emoluments paid and payable to the
remaining one (2013: one) highest paid individual are as

14. ==

(#4)

(a)

(b)

S dE L VN

EEME(E)
HE_Z—NFR=ZZ—=F
+=ZA=+—HLFE UE
EEHEXRENEEMNE -

HE-T-MER-FT—=F
+tZA=+t-BLEE &%
kX AEAMNS FES -
ERIMAREERMALEE
o2 52 - RIEAEMZHE -

TEBRSHFMAL
HE_Z-—NF+_A=+—
BIESFE AEERERSF
MALTBENA(ZE—=
MEZ)EE - HPf@B#MN EX
ZOWMA - BN REMET—
H((ZE—=F: —R)BaH

follows: AL 20T -
2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BRI
Salaries, allowances and e R REMER
other benefits 817 754
Retirement benefit costs RIRE R A 38 37

855 791
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14. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 14, ¥E M5 K s 5 A L&
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEEZEEHMAL(E)
The emoluments of this remaining one (2013: one) BI—R(ZE—=F: —F)
highest paid individual fell within the following band: EaFMALZBHMENFUT
#HE -

Emolument bands B < 5 &

Nil - HK$1,000,000 T =B #1,000,0007T 1 1
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15. W€~ s K

Group rE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
L BEEER L
BF MOWEEE  HAERE HE @Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BET T
At 1 January 2013 W-Z-=%—A—H
Cost AR 2,908 3,944 4,464 1,290 12,606
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (308) (3,522) (4,142) (854) (8,826)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,600 422 322 436 3,780
Year ended 31 December 2018 BEZZE—=F1+_F
=+—ALFE
Opening net carrying amount ENRRFE 2,600 422 322 436 3,780
Additions NE = 1,358 124 = 1,482
Written off i = = (16) = (16)
Depreciation bk (75) (622) (181) (202) (1,080)
Closing net carrying amount EXREEFE 2,525 1,158 249 234 4,166
At 31 December 2013 W=E-=F+-fA=1-H
Cost KA 2,908 3,919 4,463 1,290 12,580
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (383) (2,761) (4,214) (1,056) (8,414)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,625 1,158 249 234 4,166
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=-Z-ME+=A
St-ALER
Opening net carrying amount ENERFE 2,525 1,158 249 234 4,166
Additions NE = = 176 - 176
Written off R = = (1) = (1)
Depreciation il (76) (542) (154) (202) (974)
Closing net carrying amount EREOFE 2,449 616 270 32 3,367
At 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+=A=1+-H
Cost B 2,908 3,919 4,583 1,290 12,700
Accumulated depreciation 23t (459) (3,303) (4,313) (1,258) (9,333)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,449 616 270 32 3,367




104 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EGE & I

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.
(CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2013, certain buildings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,928,000 were pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, a motor vehicle with net book value
of HK$32,000 (2013: HK$234,000) had been held under
finance lease. The capital value of the motor vehicle at the
inception of lease amounted to HK$604,000.

The carrying amounts of buildings and prepaid land lease
payments of the Group are analysed as follows:

W2k ~ s Kt (88)

R-FE—=F+—-_H=+—H ' BEH
B4 &7BH1,928,000T 2 & THEER
EBAREBERETEE 2K -

R=ZT—MNF+=—A=+—H ' EH
SBEABES2,000T(ZE—=F : /B
#234,0007) 2 RE AR EREH
BE AERHAEER 2 ERNES
7 #604,0007T °

AEEEFREMN I HBAEFBEZE
HESTOT :

Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-IF —zF=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT IT
In Macau under medium-term leases FORFIREH BB ARFE 5,233 5,397
In Hong Kong under medium-term leases M & EIRIEF EIFALEA 1,162 1,197
6,395 6,594
Buildings el 2,449 2,525
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) TEfS LA E A (HEE18) 3,946 4,069

6,395 6,594
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2014

—E2-mEF
HK$’000
BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost
Less: Provision for impairment

B RERE

FEEMRAD - KA

86,218
(36,418)

86,218
(36,418)

49,800 49,800

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of the
interests in subsidiaries with reference to the business
operated by these subsidiaries. Based on this assessment, no
impairment loss was recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss during the year (2013: nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

REEZEMNBRARAIMKEZES
EXCERNMBARZ S ZIRE
B-RFEAR - BREZEZ  LERE
EBE(ZE—=F: B)EREKRAZ
IBRRARER ©

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—H ' KA
RAFAETINBRAZEE R HERE

m -

Held directly:
BEERA !

Century Legend Investments British Virgin Islands,

Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong
HEREREBRAR RBRAHES  BRAR  REBLSREAZR

Investment holding

63,000 ordinary shares 100%
of US$0.01 each
BREE.0IETZ 100%

63,000 &A%
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. M8 A A 2 s (48)
(CONTINUED)
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
VYN
RS2 57
AR EMRLBHREAER FEXEREELH ERITRAFHE 2B
Held directly: (Continued)
BEERE ()
Century Legend Management Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Limited company management services of HK$1,000,000
in Hong Kong
tHCREERERAR &% BRRA RNEBRENFERRY 75#1,000,0007C.2 100%
1,000,000/% % B %
Century Legend British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share 100%
Entertainment Limited limited liability company in Hong Kong of US$1
AR FIREBR AR HERAHS  ARRE  REBUSRERK 1ETL2IRE R 100%
Held indirectly:
B#EEE
Century Legend Finance Hong Kong, limited Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited liability company and personal loans shares of HK$10,000,000
in Hong Kong
HEEEREBRAR BA  BRRA REBREBXRAMAER 75%10,000,0007T.Z 100%
10,000,0008% & @k
Century Legend Securities Hong Kong, limited Stock broking 20,000,000 ordinary 100%
Limited liability company in Hong Kong shares of HK$20,000,000
HEREEFERAT &% BRRA REBUERELLEH 7#20,000,0007C.2 100%

20,000,000/ % A%
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‘

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. K& A 2 R4 (48)
(CONTINUED)
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
YN
RS §7
ARERE EMRLBHREAER FEEBEREELH ERITRAFHE AR
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BiEss © (E)
Century Legend Strategic Hong Kong, limited Investment holding 10,000,000 ordinary 100%
Investments Limited liability company in Hong Kong shares of HK$10,000,000;
5,000,000 Non-voting
deferred shares*
of HK$5,000,000
A RERBRERRAA BA BRRA REBUSREER 7#10,000,0007c2 100%
10,000,000 & A% :
#%5,000,0007C.2
5,000,0008%
BREERERK"
Hong Kong Macau Hong Kong, limited Trading of general 100 ordinary shares 100%
Trading Limited liability company merchandises of HK$100
in Hong Kong
BRESHERAR B - BRAT REBRE—RERES  BB1007T2 100k T BR 100%
CL Entertainment Limited Hong Kong, limited Inactive 10,000 ordinary shares 100%
liability company of HK$10,000
HERREFR A &% BRATA TEER 7#10,0007T.2 100%
10,0008% & &R
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, limited Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares 55%
liability company under the brand name of HK$150,000
of “Headquarters”
in Hong Kong
BHBRRAR B BRAT] REBIAmAE ##150,0007T.2 55%
[Headquarters | 150,0008% &A%
=t St
Century Legend Hong Kong, limited Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Properties Limited liability company property investments
in Hong Kong
iR EESRAR &% - BRAT REBREREERK BB ARG ER 100%

NERE
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. JAKYE A F 2 e (48)
(CONTINUED)
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
VYN
FisAER
AR EH EMRLBHREAER TEXEREELR ERITRAFE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BiERs : (8)
Max Rise Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
liability company property investments
in Hong Kong
BEREER A B ARADA REBREREERK BT ARG BR 100%
NERE
Hong Kong Macau Hong Kong, limited Provision of travel agency 500,000 ordinary shares 100%
Travel Limited liability company services in Hong Kong of HK$500,000
BRIREARAR B8 ARDA REBREMRITH R 78 #500,0007T2 100%
500,000/ % A%
Century Legend Properties Macau, limited liability Investment holding in Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 100%
(Macau) Limited company Macau 25,000
g wECRM)BRAR R ARAA REFIRSREER JRPIH ([RPIH 1)25,0007C 100%
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, limited liability Property investments in MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited company Macau
HEIEEMEFREERAR  BF ARRA REFREMERE BFI#E25,0007 100%
CL MLO12 Property Investment  Macau, limited liability Property investments in MOP25,000 100%
Limited company Macau
HEMLO12NERERRAR B BRAA REFIRENFRE JRFI#25,0007C 100%
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery Macau, limited liability Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited company
tREREEREERAR BF - BRAR TEEZ JBFI#25,0007T 100%

BRI ) B YRS
DANGEE-$5 Sy sSR0SI\ 2
ERRRAEBEAHFEATINE L

nEs
X 7=

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends
or to participate in any distribution in winding up. They carry no rights to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting.

I B 2 R 4R B BAT R T

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES &Y E
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-E —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
Fair value NEE
At 1 January ®n—A—H 279,700 256,200
Net change in fair value* NEEED)FEE 30,200 23,500
At 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H 309,900 279,700

Disclosed as “Fair value gain on investment properties” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair
value model and are leased to third parties under operating
leases to earn rental income, further details of which are set out
in note 35(a).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2014 by ROMA Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, on an open market, existing use
basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties has been categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS13 Fair value measurement.
All of the fair values of the investment properties as at 31
December 2014 is a level 3 (2013: Level 3) recurring fair value
measurement, which uses significant unobservable inputs
in arriving at fair value. During the year ended 31 December
2014, there were no (2013: nil) transfers between level 1 and
level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3.

EARARERARES [RENEL A
T{EUE B -

AREBZHEMERBRAFEER T
Ut EREEEROBETFE=T N
BEOASWA - BEE—ZPHEBHEN
BFfEE35(a) °

BUAGEREZEGHEMES HEBF
HERARER-_ZE—ME+_-A
Zt+—HBERBAAMBEZEHTHRERE
AR B 2 B FEEITEIS ©

AREFBREYEZ AN TFEAZE ED
BAE-EBLAFEER(TERLEEHHE
HELERFIRAFENE) c RZF
—MmWE+=-—A=+—H FiBEREYD
EZ2AVFERE=ZEB(ZT—=F . F
“E)KREMQATERE  FTEATE
REFEASEATIHERGAZRE - ©
BHE-_ZT-—NME+_-_F=+—HBItHF
B F-ERF_BrELEER
MEZASERE=B(-T— =4 :
/) o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair values as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are determined
using direct comparison approach. Fair values are based
on recent market information about prices for comparable
properties with significant adjustments for any differences in

the characteristics of the Group’s properties.

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

17. B&EW = (4)

RZE—WFR=_ZT—=F+=A
=t+—BHZAFEFEREEZLEL
ETE o AFETIRE AN A L&
MEZMGERBEKE  THAEE
MEZFEZENEEFENERNFARE -

HESERZFEHINT

Range of unobservable
Properties Location Level Valuation technique  Unobservable inputs inputs
TABERAYE
N ugE B fhER THERHAYE ZE[E
Residential properties Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison Premium/discount on quality of  =11% to 19%
approach properties (2013: -11% to 8%)
FEME BB 3 EL3EVA AMEER(ERE/ M -11%Z19%
(Z3—=%:-11%%8%)
A boutique hotel Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison Premium/discount on quality of ~ -5% to 40%
approach properties (2013: 9% to 256%)
EmBIE & 3 EGIEVA AMEERERE/ -5%Z40%
(Z5—=%:9%%25%)
A retail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison Premium/discount on quality of  -5% to 26%
approach properties (2013; Estimated (2013: Approximately
price per square foot HK$67,000 per sq.ft)
(‘sa.ft.")
ZEWH 2P 3 EGIEVA AMEERERE/E -5%Z25%
(Z2—=%:8¥AR (Z2—=%:8¥ARY
(FEAREHER) A& #67,0007)
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison Premium/discount on quality of  -20% to 15%
approach properties (2013: -16% to -22%)
FENE S 2P 3 EEBEVS AMEERERE/ -20%%15%

(ZE—=F: 16%Z22%)

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality
of the Group’s properties and the comparables would result
in correspondingly higher or lower fair values. The higher the
estimated price per square foot the higher the fair value and
vice versa.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best
use of the investment properties, which does not differ from
their actual use.

IAREMERALBYEZERE
EfEZB® BRI EBARE
KRRBREZATFE - SFHTRERK
BE - AHEES  RZTA -

AT ETRIBIRE Y8 S WK

REMABE  NREERAELE
=8
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2014, certain investment properties with
carrying amount of approximately HK$277,000,000 (2013:
HK$252,600,000) were pledged to secure the banking facilities
granted to the Group as further detailed in note 30.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their carrying
amounts are analysed as follows:

17.

BUEY)E ()

R-ZE—WE+=-A=+—H  E@\
E#) A #277,000,000T(ZF—=
B #252 600,0007T) 25 TIRE
YMEBIEBAREEBERETEE 2K
. BRE— P FHIBHAMEES0 °

REBRKEME L RSIRERED
T

In Hong Kong, under long-term leases RES  BERPHELOFE
In Macau, under medium-term leases PORP - BIEFEHEL A

2014 2013

= ik —zF=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ABTT
253,600 225,500
56,300 54,200

309,900 279,700
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18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FEAT T HbAH & FKIE

2014
—E-mF
HK$’000
BT T
Opening net carrying amount FHREZE 4,069 4,190
Amortisation charge for the year NEEHEER (123) (121)
Closing net carrying amount FRREFE 3,946 4,069
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Cost B X 4,687 4,687
Accumulated amortisation ZETHEH (741) (618)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,946 4,069
Analysed as: DT
Non-current assets FERBEE 3,823 3,946
Current assets mEEE 123 123
3,946 4,069
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s interest in the RZE—=%F+-_A=+—H K&
above leasehold land with carrying amount of HK$3,471,000 E S REEEABY3,471,000 T 25 T
were pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Pl E TS E R AR EEERR

Group. TEEZEM -
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19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
SUBSIDIARIES

19. KB HEAT B 88 2\ =] 3k TE

2014

—E-mE
HK$’000

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Less: Provision for impairment

B ORERE

JFE L2 S /B8 1 AR IR

bk i e

393,398
(213,248)

432,704
(273,248)

180,150 159,456

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of the
amounts due from subsidiaries with reference to the business
operated by these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment, an
impairment loss of HK$60,000,000 (2013: nil) was reversed
and recognised in the Company’s profit or loss during the year.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

B2EZEWBRARIMKEE ZE
EECEXBRHBRARREZEREA
B RERN - BEZER  BERBLOR
B 518 78 # 60,000,000 T (=T — =
F o E)TRFARARNRNE ZEBREARE

N
o

FEU, FEAST BT B A B R IE R M4 4R -
RERBERERKERE



114 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EGE & I

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. At 2 BB E E
ASSETS

Group

AEE
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, R&& L2 IRAEKRE -

at fair value BAFE 20,924 20,540

The Group’s listed equity investments in Hong Kong are
held for long-term and are non-trading in nature. Fair values
of these listed equity investments have been measured as
described in note 38.1(iv).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, gross gain in
respect of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
recognised in revaluation reserve amounted to HK$350,000
(2013: HK$197,000). For the year ended 31 December 2013,
revaluation reserve of the HK$58,000 was reclassified to profit
or loss upon disposal of certain listed equity investments.

REEBREBZLETBRAKRE DR
S BIFEEEME - WK
38.1(v) il - ZFE EMRAKE 2R
FEE FEI= -

HE_Z-—MNE+-_A=+—RHI*#F
B pAKEIHEEVEEERE
it fo (SR 0 48 R 25 1 75 5 350,000
(ZZ—=% : B8197,0007T) - H=
—E—=—F+_F=+—HItEE -
BEHETHNBES8000TERNEE
ETETRAKREREFTDEZER
AR o
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21. LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. FEUE K
Group
AEE

2014 2013

—E—F —T—=%F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT T

Gross loan receivables — unsecured JE U E AR RE — I 32,895 45,487
- secured —EEH 1,000 1,000

Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (1,706) (1,700)

Net carrying amount BREFE 32,189 44,787
Less: Amounts due within one year B — AR (2,389) (44,197)

Amounts due after one year —F 1% B HiFEE 29,800 590
The loan receivables bear interest at fixed annual rates ranging FEWE FIZE EERNEI%E22%(—
from 4% to 22% (2013: 4% to 22%). The repayment terms of B—=1F (4% E22%)itE c BEHV B

the loans are negotiated on an individual basis. FERR (A R R R B RER o

Impairment provision of HK$1,706,000 (2013: HK$1,700,000) EMBERMERBE R &ER
has been made for the loans due from two customers who are EXELAEHA,706,000c(ZFE—=
in financial difficulty. The loans are due over two years and full F : B ¥1,700,0007T ) Z B B o
impairment provision has been made for the loans. ZESRECAPME  WERZES

RIEL 2 EBRRERSE
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21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The maturity profile of the loan receivables (net of provision) at
the reporting date, which is analysed by the remaining periods
to their contractual maturity dates, is as follows:

21.

{&L{)(%U\ )
RiERE - JEJ%Z% R (BB E)
ZEBERERZAOTEERB A2
FIR BRI AT AT

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
On demand REREE - -
Three months or less =EAZAR 247 22,0561
Over three months but less than one year =AU FE—FR 2,142 22,146
In one to two years —ERE 2,413 190
Over two years ES- 27,387 400
32,189 44,787

Loans receivables (net of provision) as at 31 December
2014 which are neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of borrowers. The Group has developed long-term
business relation with majority of the relevant customers
with outstanding loan balance at the reporting date and
all of them have no recent history of default. To minimise
credit risk, the directors assess background and financial
condition of customers on regular basis. Based on the above
assessment, the directors consider that impairment provision
is not necessary in respect of the net carrying amount of loans
receivable at the reporting date.

RZE—WNFE+=—A=+—H " ¥k
B HA SR B 2 U E R (FBR BB &)
TEETFTERABR  AEEEEK
HoNMERBREEEREHRZE
BEPEVRIERBE mMEE:
B r B R G ER - ABEERKR
REREK EBTHTHERFZER
RIS o IRIE LTS EFR
ARREBEH  BEARBEKRKERZE
EREE R ERE
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22. INVENTORIES 22. 18

2014

—E-mF
HK$’000

ARFEE - EEA

Consumable stocks, at cost

ik i e

53 73

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in
cost of sales amounted to HK$668,000 (2013: HK$665,000).

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BEE 668,000 (—FE— =4 : B
¥ 665,00070) ZTE ER AR AR
¥ Wat ASHEMRA o

N E PR SR 1R s iR
Ji B 2 P 5

2014

—E-mF
HK$’000
BETT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong
held for trading, at fair value

BE  BRFE

REBEBFHEREE 2 LA

5,693 5,013

The fair value of listed equity investments have been measured
as described in note 38.1(iv).

ETRAKREZ AT ER LR E
38.1(v)atE ©
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24.

AND PREPAYMENTS

B S At WA R % FELAS
HIH

2014

—E-IF

HK$’000

BET T
Trade receivables G 10,208 9,753
Less: Provision for impairment B ORER A (281) (281)
Trade receivables, net BEEWBETCRE 9,927 9,472
Other receivables and deposits Hab R R R IES 4,431 4,222
14,358 13,694

The Group’s trade receivables at the reporting date mainly
represent the receivable balances in respect of the Group’s
stock broking business. The Group allows a credit period up to
the settlement dates of their respective transactions (normally
two business days after the respective trade dates) except for
margin client receivables which are repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade
receivables, net of provision for impairment, as at the reporting
date is as follows:

REIBEEH - AEE 2 ERERERK
IBRAKERELLER 2 HBE
WHR A - AERER TEEXHH
RHEERAPRLIL 2 EEHRERS
RpAPEMEZER) - HERKAFE
EPRAAMEERLEEE -

RiE A H - 2EEUERR(NRIRE
BB ZREOMOIZEZAH)WOT ¢

2014

—E-mF

HK$°000

BETT

Repayable on demand AR B ER
— margin receivables* — FE WA R R IE 7,254 3,885
0-30 days 0%30H 2,446 4,914
31-60 days 31£260H 42 220
61-90 days 61290H - 129
Over 90 days 90H M E 185 324
9,927 9,472
* The Group holds certain listed equity securities of clients as collateral * AEEFERLPZE T ETRAZEFA

over these trade receivables.

TERIL S & E RN IRRZ E i -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
Receivables from margin clients are interest-bearing at 6.25%
per annum, whereas receivables from cash clients amounting
to HK$2,924,000 (2013: HK$3,976,000) are interest-bearing
at 8.25% per annum.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against the trade receivables
directly.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. Included in the provision for impairment of
trade receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$281,000 (2013: HK$281,000) with a gross
carrying amount of HK$281,000 (2013: HK$281,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in default or delinquent in payments.

The ageing analysis (based on due date) of the trade
receivables excluding receivables due from margin customers

24.

UEGE &

—EF=A=1t—HIFE

o S N HCAth B i B K A FELAS
W\ I/l—l ()
REFREF ZEWARIEEG.25% 2
FHERGFE  MREREEP ZEK
RIE A B 2924000 (& —=
& #B#3,976,0007T) ¢ BI%8.25%
ZEREETE o

BHEERUER ZBEBRERA

Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ%uuaﬁ‘ BRIEAR S H HE{E UL
R HEBER  REBESS

E&?ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁzﬁ%m%@ﬁﬁ °

SWHREBH - AEBEIRER RE
CHERHEERKERZBER
o BERUWERRZBREREIIEE
BHE281,000(ZE—=F : B
281,0007T ) Z {8 Bk B 2 & 2 & U BR
KB HABREEABE281,0007T

— =% : #1281,0007T) ° @R
B 2 & S5 e U BR X CEE HE /R sk sa BR A
RZBFEERB -

B X

EAHMERKE RREERELER
R T EREBEAFREPZE) ZK

that are past due but are not considered to be impaired is as EoMGREIERBR )T -
follows:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
1-30 days past due #HEI1E30H 2,446 4,914
31-60 days past due #HIB1 260 H 42 220
61-90 days past due w61 290H - 129
Over 90 days past due #EAQ0H A 185 324
2,673 5,687
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24.

25.

206.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with a
licensed bank in Hong Kong to hold clients’ monies in
conducting its stock broking business. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, the Group has classified
the clients’ monies as trust bank balances held on behalf
of customers under current assets and recognised the
corresponding trade payables to the respective customers
under current liabilities. The Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest earned on the clients’ monies. The Group
is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has time deposits which
are denominated in RMB with original maturity periods of
12 months. The deposits earn interest at fixed rate ranging
from 2.50% to 3.30% per annum (2013: 2.29% to 2.45%
per annum) and are pledged to secure certain bank facilities
granted by a bank (note 30).

24.

25.

20.

B 36 % HL A R SRR S TELA
A (48)

4 R B o OB (2 4 PR AR R R
AR R R R 2 E T AME
FEm -

BB B REIEZ & X E KRR
REAEERARFNRTHZE
F-REBELR EEEMARE &
AR EH/BELRERE  REAR
EEEEMBEEAREY RZFHERD
AR AR 2R -

&5 1A 25 R AT 4 iR

AEEERERELLERE - K—
BAERBBERTREBUERES UF
HEFPHA - REaMBRRERSD -
AEEREPRBEND B RN EER
TREFHAZERRITESR LN
MBEBRTERABNEER 2R
BERMNER - AEEAREEP K
HERRBRZ BN REENE - ETF
REPFRIEFEAEE 2 &

ELHEFF SR AT A7 3K
R-E—NWE+—_A=+—8 ' K&
ERFEETUAREFEZEHT
P REEHERRAIEA - 25T
RN F2.50% £3.30% (=T —=
&F 1 2.20% £ 2.45% ) K [E E F F| & Bk
BALE - WE R - UES —HR
TEREZETHRTHE (K7E30)
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. Bl4 MERATHE R
Cash and bank balances include the following: B RIRITEABERETIIRE

2014 2014

—E-MmF —E-mF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T
Cash at bank and in hand  #R{T R FHEES 23,271 22,033 3,001 2,927
Short-term bank deposits %8 ERER1T1Z 3K 133,991 104,792 130,891 52,257
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE 157,262 126,825 133,892 55,184

2014 2014
—E-lF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Denominated in: LATRZE¥ETE -
RMB AR 105,203 75,681 105,160 37,236
HK$ B 51,884 50,971 28,728 17,944
US$ 7T 15 15 4 4
MOP SR P 132 129 - =
Other currencies Hih gk 28 29 - -
157,262 126,825 133,892 55,184
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily RITHRESEEBARTERFNERNZH)
bank deposits rates. Short-term bank deposits are placed with FIEFHE o RERITE K AIF R IR
banks with original maturity periods range from 1 month to 12 17 REFEER N F1EAE12(E A
months (2013: range from 1 month to 12 months) and earn ZE—=F:NF1EAE12EA) -
interest income at market interest rates ranging from 0.28% to MIEMISHEN T E&F0.28%%3.80%
3.80% per annum (2013: 0.02% to 3.55% per annum). (ZZ—=%F : BF0.02%=3.55%) &

HRHBUA
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28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EERETHRK
At the reporting date, the ageing analysis (based on invoice RBEBH  AEEZEXEHAERER
date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows: ZERBRAMUREZA)WOT ¢

2014

—2-mE
HK$°000
BT T

Repayable on demand — Trust bank BREREE-—BHEFERZ

balances for funds placed by B 2P R1TMER

customers 5,919 2,235
0-30 days 0&30H 3,026 1,481
31-60 days 31£260H M 65

8,986 3,781
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 29. REH L AL
LEASES
The analysis of the obligations under finance leases is as RIE TR A EEDHTIO R -
follows:
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Total minimum lease payments: RIEAL 4% :
Due within one year —FE A EI| HY 136 136
Due in the second to fifth year F_FEEFRAF(BIEEEMSE)
inclusive Ealp=i 101 237
237 378
Less: Future finance charges B RRELE B (26) (41)
Present value of finance lease B E A EIEIRE
obligations 211 332
Present value of finance lease AL AIERE
obligations:
Due within one year included in —FARENT BRBEE
current liabilities 121 121
Due in the second to fifth year F_EEFERF(BIEEEMSE)
inclusive included in non-current H B A AIEREI B E
liabilities 20 211
211 332
The Group entered into finance leases in respect of the REERBARETLRMERL - H
purchase of motor vehicles. The lease period is 5 years and HeAf REMEMOTORZE
interest rates are 2.45% (2013: 2.45%) per annum at the T E2.45%(ZF—=4F : 2.45%) °
contract date of the respective finance leases. The leases have A 49 #E B ARG SRS E R S AT 2 15

no terms of renewal or any contingent rental provisions. X o
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30.

BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED)
At 31 December 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings are

repayable as follows:

30.

SRATIE B (A #EH)
R-ZEBE—NE+—_A=+—81 ' K&

BRITEEZEEBRAT

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-E —T—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Current liabilities REBE
Portion of term loans from banks due 7BR—FREE ZRITEHER
for repayment within one year 2 Ep1n 171,131 181,654
Portion of term loans from banks due B &R EREEER A
for repayment after one year which R—FREEZRITEHAERK
contain a repayment on demand =5
clause 78,350 40,711
249,481 222,365

The bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable on
demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion
of term loan due for repayment after one year which contain
a repayment on demand clause (and therefore classified as
current liability) is expected to be settled within one year.

RITER(BRAREREEZEHE
)RR AT R - BT —
FRGEEZBREREEGR(MEA
EAEARBAE) ZAN—FRER
ZEHESRE D -



B (SRED) ARATR « —F—TEEHR 125

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UEGE &

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—F=+—HFFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED)
(CONTINUED)

The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled

30. SRATIEE CAHE) (47)

AEBZRITEERAEENETZ

repayment is as follows: DT ¢
Group
REE
2014 2013
— Lk —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PE T IT
Portion of term loan due for repayment 7B —FREE 2 FHER 2
within one year =10 171,131 181,654
Portion of term loans due for ARN—FREEZEHEFRZ
repayment after one year (note (a)) 2B (K 5E(a))
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMRFRN 31,133 1,691
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRERAFR 14,983 5,087
After 5 years AF% 32,234 33,933
249,481 222,365

Notes: B EE -

(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out (a) ZERMAREDRIEE R B EATEZ A
in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any notice for repayment LEBEHFE BT MRERER
on demand. BHZTE -

(b) The Group’s bank borrowings as at the reporting date, all denominated (b) RBEAH  RRERREZERKEA
in HK$, bear interest at HIBOR plus 1.2% to 2.2% or prime rate minus MNRRPIZRITLZHEZERME + BN
2.95% (2013: HIBOR plus 1.2% to 2.2% or prime rate minus 2.95%) per B2 RTEEGIUBEE) © HRlR
annum for loans arranged in Hong Kong and at HIBOR plus 2.2% (2013: BARITAZEREMFEE1.2%E2.2%
prime rate minus 1.15% to 1.75%) per annum for loans arranged with RIEHEBHERFE2.95%(=ZF—=
the banks domiciled in Macau. FRBITREFRBMELN2%E2.2%

IR R BEFRH2.95%) RILBITEE
WEMEFEE22%(ZF—=4F : HEHR
FERRE BAA5%E1.75%) T8 °

(c) The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s (©) AREZRITIERETIAE TREHEEX

investment properties and bank deposits with a total carrying amount
of approximately HK$398,212,000 (2013: HK$373,731,000), and
corporate guarantee given by the Company (note 37) to the extent of
HK$249,481,000 (2013: HK$222,365,000). In addition, the Group’s
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013 were pledged by certain of
the Group’s properties and prepaid land lease payments amounting to
HK$5,399,000.

75 #373,731,000C( =T —=F : B
379,130,0007T) Z R EEHE EW K
SBITER - WRAAFMELZ LR A
#049,481,000L(— T — =4 : B
222,365,0007T ) 2 A AIEAR (M sE37 ) 1E
W o I REBRZTE—=F+=
A=+—AZRITEBENREEBEE
5,399,000t 2 & T¥¥ RIEN L HE
RIEAE o



126

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED -

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B ¥ 3K B GE

for the year ended 31 December 2014 ¢ #Z —Z—pF+—H=+—H I F/Z

31.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013
and 31 December 2014

31. A

SERE ¢
R-_Z—=f—A—H
—F=FtZA=t+—AK

—E—WFE+=-_A=+—H 2,000,000,000 400,000

Issue and fully paid: BETRAR :
At 1 January 2013 N-_ZTE—=F—H—H 297,669,597 59,534
Shares issued under exercise of share  RIETTEREIRE 2 21T G

options (note 32) (B$5E32) 5,940,000 1,188
At 31 December 2013 and N-ZZT—=F+=-A=+—80xK

1 January 2014 —E—mEFE—F—H 303,609,597 60,722
Shares issued under exercise of share  1RIETTEBEIRE 2 2 1T H

options (note 32) (F3E32) 3,032,000 606
At 31 December 2014 MN-_ZE—NE+_B=+—H 306,641,597 61,328
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SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
the participants who have contributed to the Group and
encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The board of directors may,
at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of any member
of the Group, any advisors and service providers of any
member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (i) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of the options by each of the relevant grantees. The options
vest on the condition that the grantee is a participant of the
Share Option Scheme from the date of options grant to the
commencement date of the exercisable period of the options
and the participant is not required to achieve any performance
targets before any share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

The share-based employee compensation is to be settled by
the issue of the Company’s ordinary shares. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
share options other than by issuing the Company’s ordinary
shares.

On 8 April 2009, the Company offered to grant share options to
certain executive directors and an employee of the Company
(subject to their respective acceptance) to subscribe for a
total of 23,813,565 ordinary shares in the share capital of the
Company, subject to the Share Option Scheme to be adopted
at the annual general meeting of the Company. The Share
Option Scheme had been duly adopted by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting on 22 May 2009
and the grantees accepted the share options on the same
date.

32.

DA Ay S At 2 A B Al 15

RAARRERZ-ZZEZTNFRA=-+=
HREOZERBAFTFRE BB RS
IR RT B ([ BB AT 2l ) -
ZEERETEZEZ BN A RE K
REHASEFLHERMZ28EE © B
MR EEAARNRNERE 2
BAZBORSARARERD ZE
B -EFeRNBERASEEMAKE
REIZES - BE @ ARAEEEM
B 8 A R) 2 ] A s R AR 755 4 JE il %%
HIERELREBEARARRRG - REE
BRMER T =FFZ2&EmE © ()RR
ARMRIBLBREEBEB A2
WmfE: (RO RBEEREEREER
H Al A AR 5 B8R prz FH U
B Ri)RHEE - SHEBEERXAZR
RERFT L 2 BIER - BT
ZEREBARE - BRIEZFBIREA
ERARERBRER P ERET
FHRRZ B AIENERE - BAERH
BREEZ2EBA  MBBEAEE
RIR R B AR A 5T 213 ) 2 (E (] B AR 42
AIEITERERT I REERZ o

Btz BEBMERAETAR
AIEAB - RBETAARE AR
S - 2N SR B I 4 (] B (] Sk ST A R i
BZEESHEERME

RZZEZNFWMANE » RERARQ
AIREBAFRES ERMZBRES
g ARAERARAETFTHITES
F—2EE(XEESEEMERS)
RHBRRE - AFREES 23,813,565
WRARGRAF 2 EBR - KR AR
BN -_ZEZAFEFRA-T+-_HZKE
BAFRg LB EXFENERESTS
AR ABRE B & RiERE o
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32.

—EF=ZA=1—HIFE

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

On 21 April 2011 and 13 September 2012, the Company
offered to grant share options to Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia, an executive director and an associate of substantial
shareholders of the Company to subscribe for a total of
2,970,000 and 2,970,000 ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme respectively. The
grantee accepted the share options on the same date.

Mr. Wu Binquan has resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 October 2011 and the shares
options granted to him for subscribing for 7,441,739 ordinary
shares in the share capital of the Company has been forfeited
on the same date.

On 18 December 2013, Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia exercised
a total of 5,940,000 share options granted to her and
accordingly, 5,940,000 ordinary shares of the Company have
been issued to her. The exercise of those share options has
resulted in the increase in share capital and share premium
by HK$1,188,000 and HK$1,689,000 respectively, and
the decrease in share option reserve by HK$976,000. The
weighted average share price of the Company on the date of
exercise of the options was HK$0.490.

On 23 April 2014, the Company offered to grant further share
options to Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia to subscribe for a total
of 3,032,000 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme. The granted accepted the
share options on the same date.

On 30 December 2014, Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia exercised
a total of 3,032,000 share options granted to her and
accordingly, 3,032,000 ordinary shares of the Company have
been issued to her. The exercise of those share options has
resulted in the increase in share capital and share premium
by HK$606,000 and HK$1,299,000 respectively, and the
decrease in share option reserve by HK$537,000. The
weighted average share price of the Company on the date of
exercise of the options was HK$0.520.

32.

DAAR A 2 R B H 1R (7))
RZBE-——FOA-_+—BAR-Z
——HFNLA+=H " REBERES

2 ARFREMEBBHELE(EARA
RPN TEERFERE 2B E
AT) R ERE - LD BIRES X
2,970,000 % % 2,970,000 f& Ax A &) i%
Ay E@ER - AR AD KRR B ER
BERRAE -

SREEAELCDEHIARAMITES -
H-ZT——F+A—HBHEER MK
T HARIE7,441,7390% R R B pR A< b
2 EREEZ EBREE R B HR U -

RZEBE—=F+=-F+/\H0 - ZHEHE
7+ & H171#5,940,000 10 & F 1% 2
BRE Bl ARFIERKEET
5,940,000 LB - 1TEZFER
BRI ARG & E 5 Bl S
1,188,000 7T & & # 1,689,000 7T * LA
% B A e e 4 Rk 2 8 5 976,0007T © AN
NAE R ESTE B HI A piE F 19 %
BAB10.4907T °

RZZE—NFOMA=-+=H ' REE
TS  ARRE—FTRERHL
TR BB - LARES ££3,032,000
BARRNBRAFR 2 ZRR - ZTALD
AR B 5 A BB AR AE o

R-FE—NFE+-_A=+H " ZHEH
L& EITEFER 23,082,000
AR - AR | R E173,082,000
BREBAE o TR FHEREE RN
K& A7 B 2 5138 1078 % 606,0007T &
1 299,0007T LA K2 B AR HE 6 48 0L
D EBB537,0007T © AN BRI
I & B 2 NEFHRRE FAE0.520
o



AL (RE) ARAF « —F—IEER 129

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 i 3R B RE

for the year ended 31 December 2014 &% — T —1F+ —H=+—H I F/Z

32. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 32. VA At 2 48 B ifE (48)
COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the reporting period KR & HAB R 2 8 & H ik
and their weighted average exercise price are as follows: EHITEEBHT
2014
—E-mF
Weighted
average
Number of exercise
options price
BREZE METHTHEE
HK$
BET
Outstanding at 1 January K—A—BREKTE 16,371,826 0.310 22,311,826 0.313
Granted B 3,032,000 0.451 - -
Exercised 217 (3,032,000) 0.451 (5,940,000) 0.320
Outstanding at 31 December R+ A=+—BHRTE 16,371,826 0.310 16,371,826 0.310

Exercisable at 31 December R+=A=+—Br{7fE 16,371,826 0.310 16,371,826 0.310
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32.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the share options granted on 22 May 2009,
21 April 2011, 13 September 2012 and 23 April 2014 are
approximately HK$4,284,000, HK$633,000, HK$343,000 and
HK$537,000 respectively, and have been determined using
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model (for share options granted
on 13 September 2012 and 23 April 2014) and the Binomial
Option Pricing Model (for share options granted on 22 May
2009 and 21 April 2011) by an independent professional valuer
at the date of grant. The following assumptions were used to
calculate the fair values of the share options:

32.

PABEA S A 22 A Bl 1 (468)

R-TEZNAFRA-_+=-H —Z
——HFWPA-Z+—B -ZFB—=—FAh
A+=Z=BR-_ZE—WFMXMA-_+=H
Frit zBIREZ A FED R AS
¥ 4.284,0007C ~ 7 #633,0007T * B
#343,0007T & 7 #537,0007T © i
—ZB BEGEMPRZE L B EERA
MAE - TR EERA (EER
T E——HFANAFT=BRE_ZT—NF
MA-+=AEEZERE) R =ER
HETERX(EER_EZENFHA
T+ ZBERZE——FWmA=+—H
BREZERE)ETE - UTAARHE
BREATE B
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SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (CONTINUED)

23 April 13 September 21 April 22 May
Grant date 2014 2012 2011 2009
Exercise price HK$0.451 HK$0.245  HK$0.395  HK$0.310
Expected volatility 46.35% 56.51% 118.85% 122.09%
Expected life of share options 5 years 5 years 10 years 10 years
Dividend yield nil nil nil nil
Risk-free interest rate 1.42% 0.31% 2.67% 2.46%

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference
to historical data, calculated based on expected life of share
options, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

Total employee share option expense in respect of the share
options granted on 23 April 2014 of HK$537,000 were
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2014 (2013: nil) with the corresponding credit to the share
option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as these were all
equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2014 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.4 years (2013:
5.4 years).

“E-mE ZE-E E--F 0 CEEAE
BEA®  MA-t=R  AATSR MACt-B EACtCR

kg ok K K

EHiE 46.35% 56.51% 118.85% 122.00%
EhEEEs 55 5 10E 108
fiEES i 3&% E k
2EkilE 142% 031% 267% 2.46%

EHBRRARBEBN2ZRBERBELRE
BREREHNEET  MERSE
RBBERER °

BRER-_ZE—NFENA-_+=HFAK
TEREZEEERERARES
537,000 LERBE T —MF
+—A=1+—HIEFEZEFETPER
WA AR ERFE(ZE—=F
/) HREBRSYAUREALEE 2
BN S R EEREE -

RKITEERENR_Z—NFE+=A
Zt+—BHZMEFHB AL E NS
BAAFE(ZB—=4F : 54%F) o



132 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e 3K M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2014« #Z —E—p#F+—H=+—H I FE

33. RESERVES 33.

Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a) Capital reserve of the Group
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 19983; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

(b) Revaluation reserve
Revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets and revaluation gain on self-occupied properties
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in notes 3.11, 3.7 and 3.10.

(c) Share option reserve
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17.

feti i
A EH
AEERAFERBEFEZHES
BREDHNRAESEHRRIIR -

EEHEENT

() AREZEXRRHE
AEBZEXRFE B

0] ARABEBRITHRAEE
HEKRAEBZZER
ARE-NAN=F&H
Bl BAEERKD
wERZER R

(ii) EHAERAEHE
TR - ZFFT
—FEBTRMHZER
B & ¥50.1 70 ¥ Bl S
#0.097T °

(b) EffLf#EE
EHREEETHEE 2T B
BEZRFATEEDFER
B B 2 &8 W W AR B K
££38.11 » 3.7 3. 102 T BUR
BRIE o

(c) BRERAE
B % 4 o 8 AR R B 323,17
B2 BEHHEER -
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 33. feifhi (7)

At 1 January 2013 W=E-—=F-f—H 147,930 213,978 3,921 (187,766) 178,063
Profit for the year REEFE - = = 1,707 1,707
Share option exercised (note 32) BimERE(H2) 1,689 = (976) = 3
At 31 December 2013 and WZE-=F+-A=1-H}

1 January 2014 —Z-ME-F—H 149,619 213,978 2,945 (186,059) 180,483
Profit for the year REEFIE - - - 59,582 59,582
Share option granted (note 32) BRI E(H32) - - 537 - 537
Share option exercised (note 32) B E (332) 1,299 = (637) = 762
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-A=1-A 150,918 213,978 2,945 (126,477) 241,364

Note: BEE -
Contributed surplus of the Company represents: RNAT 2 BERRE

(i) the difference between the underlying net tangible assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company at the time of the group reorganisation
referred to above; and

(ii) the reduction in issued share capital arising from the cancelling of paid
up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

(i)

(i)

AAREENBARZIEREREE
FEEARDAN LR M EAR B
TRMHEEZZE &

TSR RAEHE BITRARD - #§
T -FEBETROHZEREEBYE
0.1 T BRI S #0.097T ©
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34. DEFERRED TAX

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group
and their movements during the current and prior year are as

34. IRIEFIH

AEERAEERBEFERRZE
EREEBENREES ZFBFOT

follows:
Group
AEE
Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
IR E REYHEZ
e AEEBE a&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
At 1 January 2013 W_ZE—=F—H—H 1,337 740 2,077
Amount charged to profit or loss A EZEHHIG 2 7738
(note 9) (BFFEEQ) - 672 672
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F+=A
1 January 2014 =+—BX
—E-mFE—-H—H 1,337 1,412 2,749
Amount charged to profit or loss RiBz5 Ik 2 /I8
(note 9) (FfF5E9) - 252 252
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—NFE+=8
Ear=12 1,337 1,664 3,001

At 31 December 2014, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$210,643,000 (2013: HK$202,555,000). No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of such
tax losses as it is uncertain whether future taxable profit will
be available for utilising the tax losses. Under the current tax
legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

At the reporting date, the Company did not have any significant
deferred tax.

NR-ZZE—NE+-_A=+—8 ' K&
Bz FRIEEIE L AE%210,643,0007T
—T— =4 : ##202,555,0007T) °
FR 7 R BE 7 TE AR 2K 7] 75 JE SR At v ) 1T
FRAMBEE WRELTERZEH
HEERRELEHEEE - IREB A
ZRIEED - FRIEEE A R HR A S o

R¥RE B AR EYLEEAERE
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
17) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years. At
the reporting date, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

35. &

(a)

LA % P BUR Y

EREEA

AEERBELEAHLHHA
HEEEgWE(ME17) > HEZ
BN F—E=MEF - RkEH
B RBEABR AR L2 TH
BMEEEEL - REBATRIA
TF KB Z KRR SERER
TRARERAN T

Group

AEE
2014 2013

—EF-MmEF —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST IT
Within one year —F R 12,404 9,533
In the second to fifth year inclusive S -FZFRE(HEEME
BIEEN) 13,576 6,676
25,980 16,209
As lessee (b) {EHREBA

The Group leases certain of its office properties and
equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
leases run for an initial period of one to five years, with
options to renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or
at dates as mutually agreed between the Group and the
respective landlords/lessors. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

AEERBEEHOZHEAE
HETHRIEMERRE - &
FHAONT /P —Z20F - 21
BRENERBEHAAEEESR
MExE HEAXREEZA
HIZ1TEME - 2FHENMES
ARAEE -
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

As lessee (Continued)

At the reporting date, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, in respect of rented office premises
and equipment, falling due as follows:

35.

RE e AH &) 2 PR BLURIE (45)

(b) EREBEA(HE)
K& BH - RE AT HGHE
EHY AEBZARCEBRR
EWMEMRER AT F R
ZARZKEREFRBEMAT :

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —F—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within one year —&FR 3,309 3,414
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ _-E&ZFhE(HREME
BEER) 779 4,014
4,088 7,428

Company
The Company does not have significant operating lease
arrangements and commitments at the reporting date
(2018: nil).

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties during the year:

(a)

Compensation of key management personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel are the directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 14(a), and certain highest paid employees whose
remunerations are set out in note 14(b).

30.

AT
ARARBEEHBBEBEAL
EHENOZHEAZE(ZT—=
F:E|)-

RN '
REEGAMBRALCRBERE
R RAEBIN - FRAEE R E
ATHEITTHIERRS :

(a) FEEEAEZFHM
EERE TEEBEAERNX
ARAZEBRET R THE
B FEzHEHFBIRER
MIsE14(a) M sE14(b) °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BA# N5 (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Operating lease charges (b) REHRNEH
2014 2013
—E-ImEF —E==
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Rental expenses for a motor A TARXHREZHE
vehicle paid to 53
— Conba Management Consultant —2Z2EEIEERMAERE QA
Limited 234 234
— Complex Investments Limited —EREBEREFBR AR 216 216
- Nosie Boy (HK) Investments —HBRE(FEB)ARAR
Limited 156 156
606 606
The operating lease charges are mutually agreed by the BEMANERARAEERENTES
Group and the contracting party. REEERE °
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial EFCRAEEREAEREERAR
shareholder and director of Conba Management RElZBEmRRNRES -

Consultant Limited.

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia, director, is the beneficial EECMmMLLTAERBEREARA
shareholder and director of Complex Investments A EmBRERES o

Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching, director, is the beneficial EECBUREERHBBRREEB)E
shareholder and director of Nosie Boy (HK) Investments RARZE=RERES -

Limited.
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

At 31 December 2014, the Company had corporate
guarantees given to the banks to secure the loans granted to
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Under these corporate
guarantees, the Company would be liable to pay the banks
if the banks are unable to recover the loans granted to these
subsidiaries. The total outstanding balance of these bank loans
at the reporting date was approximately HK$249,481,000
(2013: HK$222,365,000) and this represented the Company’s
maximum exposure under the guarantee contracts. No
provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
contracts has been made as the directors considered that
default risk is largely covered by the underlying securities
of properties and pledged bank deposits with carrying
amount of HK$398,212,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$379,130,000) and accordingly, it is not probable that a
claim will be made against the Company under the guarantee
contracts.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

37.

38.
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#& 222,365,000 ) * B BIA R AR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. W
(%

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 38.1

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial assets and liabilities recognised at
the reporting date are categorised as follows. See notes
3.11 and 3.18 for explanations on how the category
of financial instruments affects their subsequent

B g

il

g A H S o FE R

HMBEEREEZER

RmEAHERERAEBEA
AR BEERBEZERE
DEWMT - BREAS®BmIT EER
MAZBEFEZTE  BFR
M:E3.11 %3.18 A THE %

measurement. B o
() Financial assets (i) HMBEE
Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —FT—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Available-for-sale financial assets AJ fit 5 & 7 BA &5 & & 20,924 20,540
Financial assets at fair value BEAFENRE RN IERER
through profit or loss PRI A E 5,693 5,013
Loans and receivables: B EWERER
- Loans receivables — B E K 32,189 44,787
— Trade and other receivables — 3 L H th FEULBR X 13,878 11,534
— Trust bank balances held on —REFEFE ZEF
behalf of customer RITEER 6,086 2,402
— Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER 121,212 121,131
— Cash and bank balances — R & RIRTTHE 157,262 126,825

357,244 332,232
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. IS B K A TE R =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (78)
(CONTINUED)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 38.1 MIEERAEBEZEA(E)
(Continued)
() Financial assets (Continued) () MEEEE)

2014

—E-mF

HK$’000

BETT

Loans and receivables: B EUWERER
— Other receivables — E fib UG BR X 1,299 552
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — EUFTE A 7] k18 180,150 159,456
— Cash and bank balances — A& RIRITH R 133,892 55,184
315,341 215,192
(ii)  Financial liabilities (i) HMKEE

2014

—E-mE
HK$’000
BT

Financial liabilities measured at & s A2 2

amortised cost: M5B E :
- Trade and other payables — & E L H M EERRR 23,012 15,083
- Bank borrowings (secured) —RITEE(FIERA) 249,481 222,365
— Obligations under finance — BB ML

leases 211 332

272,704 237,730
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. AR B B AN T ER &
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#48)
(CONTINUED)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 38.1 BIREEREBEZER(E)
(Continued)
(ii)  Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) HBEE(E)
Company
PN
2014 2013
—E—F —ET—=%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Financial liabilities measured at  1R#E Sk AT 2 2
amortised cost: MigatE -
- Amounts due to subsidiaries  — U E A B IE 61,805 23,586
— Other payables and accruals — H A FEMBRE K
FERTFIE 959 537
62,764 24,123
(iii) Financial instruments not measured at (iii) WIFERAFEFEZ
fair value SRITA
Financial instruments not measured at fair WHEATFEAENS
value include trade and other receivables, BTEREEEREM

loan receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, trust bank balances held on behalf
of customers, pledged bank deposits, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, obligations under finance
leases, amounts due to subsidiaries and financial
guarantees issued.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments
approximate their fair values.

FEU AR - B E R -
fE U R & Mt B 2 & X
H REFPHAZER
RITHESR - EEARTT
TR RERBTE
7 BEREMEMNEK
RRIBE  BEMR
HIEHE - RIS B R A
RIERE LM
1% o

ERNEEHE  %2EF2
BMTAZEREERER
FEMEE -
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38.

—EF=ZA=1—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(CONTINUED)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market
prices which is classified as level 1 financial
instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year (2013: nil).

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. HABSJER B HE AN E R =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (48)
(CONTINUED)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 38.1 MIBEERAEGEZER(E)
(Continued)
(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair (iv) BRATETTEZE£R
value (Continued) TA(&)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the B RO R NIE A F
statement of financial position are grouped into B2 BEETE
the fair value hierarchy as follows: DEUATZAFEZRE :
Group
bS]
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$1E %2E %3 @t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARt ARt BWTR ARt

As 31 December 2014 R-E-NF+=A
Er=I
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEYR RN ERERS
profit or loss BEZHBEEE 5,693 - - 5,693
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHEVZHBEE 20,924 - - 20,924
Net fair values FATE 26,617 - - 26,617

As 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=A
=t—-H
Financial assets at fair value through BATEY R RN EEERR 5,013 = - 5013
profit or loss REHBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHECHBEE 20,540 = - 20,540

Net fair values FATE 25,553 = = 25,553
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38.

—EF=ZA=1—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)
There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets are listed equity securities denominated
in HK$. Fair values have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the
reporting date.

38.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s and the Company’s exposures to currency
risk arise from its deposits placed in banks, which are
primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out in
note 26 and 27. The Group and the Company have
no other significant foreign currency risk due to limited
foreign currency transactions as the Group and the
Company mainly operate in Hong Kong with majority
of the business transactions being denominated and
settled in HK$.

38.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. AR B AT EE

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)

(CONTINUED)

38.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 38.2 IMEEREBR(4E)
Summary of exposure [ B
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and PONESE M BEERBE
liabilities, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the DK mIEXRHLE SEE ZIER
closing rates, are as follows: s

2014

—E-mE
HK$’000
BT

Pledged bank deposits BHEARITER 121,212 121,131
Cash and bank balances e RIRTT iR 105,203 75,681

226,415 196,812

2014

—E-mEF
HK$’000
BT T

Cash and bank balances BE NIRTT4E 105,160 37,236
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. BAF5)
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Lﬁ
(CONTINUED)
38.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The following tables illustrate the sensitivity of the
Group’s and the Company’s result and equity in
regards to a 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) appreciation in the
foreign currencies against the Group entities’ functional
currencies. The 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) is the rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
best assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period has been determined based on
the assumed percentage changes in foreign currency
exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout the year.

T

S VYN SiRe

38.2 hEEmEpE (/)

BREDW
TREMAEERARREE
MEDEIINEH AN EB TR
BEEEEFE2.5%(—T—=4F :
25%) 2HRERE c25% (=&
—=F :25%)BEEAIME
BEE A B 2 HIINE E b2 EFFT
BERZLER - AT EE LI
KEPE RO gL B B) v REMG AT
1 °

REERA R RN RE R
XZHMERRR 2 BRRE DT
RENMBFERBEEES
EREA—BERTZIMNEER
RREHADLLETE -

Group
rEE
Increase in profit
for the year and
retained profits

N B SRR I AR B s 3L hn
2014 2013
—E—-NF —ZF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
2.5% (2013: 2.5%) appreciation AR®EFHE2.5%
in RMB —T—=F :2.5%) 5,660 4,920




AL s (SR FIRAF « T PUFEFEH 147

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UEGE &

for the year ended 31 December 2014« # 7 —F—F 1 - F=+—HIF&F

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. AR P A E R =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)
38.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 38.2 S (4E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE D W (&)
Company
KATE

Increase in profit
for the year and decrease
in accumulated losses

R B E F
BNk R EERDS
2014 2013
—E—F —_=F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
2.5% (2013: 2.5%) appreciation AREFE2.5%
in RMB (ZEB—=%F:25%) 2,629 931

A 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) depreciation in the foreign SN EE TR EBRE

currencies against the group entities’ functional
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s and the Company’s result for the year and
equity but of opposite effect.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

25%(ZF—=F :25%) ' &
HAREBMMARRIAEEESE
M= REREE RS AR
RZFE -

38.3 FIZE b

MERBDERMB LA ZRQ
FESBEREHATESF =X
BEimKE R o AEEA
H¥ 2 M EEFHmEEREE
BT AR B LOF B F 2 BEER
TEE - AEEREHEEM
FEEREE - AT - EFE
RMEEHIER - UWHERY
EREZREPEAFEEDY o
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38.  BAME R E N E R &

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)

(CONTINUED)

38.3 Interest rate risk (Continued) 38.3 F=EBx(E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRITRTA Bt # R
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all e A KL AR e
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit for HERAT  REBZAFER
the year and equity (through the impact on floating rate T Rz GE R Z A KRBT
bank borrowings). BEZHE)HEE) 2 B -

2014

—E-mEF

HK$’000

BT T

Increase in basis points (“bp”) HEL([EZ])Em
+ 100 bp +100E 2, 2,495 2,224

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all ) 2R ek 1 00 FE 2 i H b B HUR
other variables held constant, would have the same BIrE  BEHAEEAFEZ
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity XERERTREREERL

but of opposite effect. MR 22 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. BAHS A E B N E R E
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (#8)
(CONTINUED)

38.4 Equity price risk 38.4 REEHKEME

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss.

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commaodity price risk.

At 31 December 2014, if the quoted market price for
the available-for-sale investments had been 10% (2013:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$2,092,000 (2013: HK$2,054,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss had been 10% (2013: 10%)
higher/lower with all other variables remain unchanged,
the Group’s profit for the year would increase/decrease
by HK$569,000 (2013: HK$501,000) whereas the
Group’s retained profits would increase/decrease by
the same amount.

R EE R R TR RAE

N ERE BRI BUKFE R E
%ﬂ”F@HQWWQZH
B ARBRAKRE LHERARE
F(DBERAHHE M BEE
R RFEIER RN BT
RRIBZMBEE)  HEE LM
BAFESMEZBELR

ExgSsTRARNEHRED
KREHES NEEIRER - I
0w R ERE RS HE R

cAREHEE YA MER
BB

R-E—NWFE+=-A=+—
B RO EEEREMBRZ
MELH/TE10%(ZT—=
F:10%) * MATA s
BAE . BIAREE 2 HESGE
N A 4 7 2,092,000 7T
—E—=4 : #12 054,000
JL) °

MBS EARATET
HE&WE SIRPEEZHEE
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EH S RBEA0% (=4
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. HHs
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS ('W
(CONTINUED)

38.5 Credit risk 38.5

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loan receivables is
performed by the directors on on-going basis. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amount
of the trade and other receivables and loan receivables
individually and collectively at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. At the reporting date, the
Group holds listed equity securities with market value
of HK$11,240,000 (2013: HK$13,615,000) as collateral
over the balance of margin receivables (note 24). In
addition, a loan receivable amounting to HK$1,000,000
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$1,000,000) is
secured by a property located in Hong Kong (note
21). Other than the above, the Group does not hold
any collateral over the loans and receivables at the
reporting date. At the reporting date, the Group has
certain concentration risk as HK$29,600,000 or 92%
(2013: HK$40,000,000 or 89%) of the Group’s loan
receivables are due from two borrowers.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.5

38.6

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities and from fund
raising activities such as rights issue.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)
38.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)
At the reporting date, the maturity profile of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

38.

s Ja o B e P {E R

(%)

38.6

REE SRR (&)

RBER  AEEREARAE
REHWARBERASREZHH
BEIHERERIEWT

At 31 December 2014 RZZB-ME+ZA
=t-A
Trade and other payables BEDEMERED 23,012 - - 23,012 23,012
Bank borrowings including those containa TR E(BEHAREXERE
repayment on demand clause (note) FBTES) () 249,481 - - 249,481 249,481
Obligations under finance leases BEMAAL 136 101 - 27 211
272,629 101 - 272,730 272,704
At 31 December 2013 R=F-ZF+2H
=t+-A
Trade and other payables EEREAMENERR 15,083 - - 15,083 16,083
Bank borrowings including those containa BT E(BRSEREREENE
repayment on demand clause (note) T2 BAES) () 217,074 - - 217,074 217,074
Other bank borrowings HERE 5318 - - 5318 5,201
Obligations under finance leases BERMAR 136 237 - 373 332
237,561 237 - 237,798 237,730

Note:

For term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause which can
be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis above shows
the cash outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect.

PEE -

HRBERTUZEBMBTEZRER
BEEGRZERER LA NRER
A B 7R AR R 2 B B (B i & 05 BT (8
HE G ERZ RS EEET)253R
EMHE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. AR B S A H R R
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%4)
(CONTINUED)
38.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 38.6 REELEK(E)

At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+ZA
=t+-R
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHEARZE 61,805 - - 61,805 61,805
Other payables and acoruals e R 3R 959 - - 959 959
62,764 - - 62,764 62,764
Financial guarantees issued ERLZHBER
Maximum amount guaranteed EaEREE 249,481 - - - 249,481
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=£+Zf
=t-R
Amounts due to subsidiaries EFRHELAE 23,586 - - 23,586 23586
Other payables and acoruals B R 3R 537 - - 537 537
24123 - - 24123 24,123
Financial guarantees issued ERLZHBER

Maximum amount quaranteed SRS 229,365 - - = 222,365
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

38.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

38.

B 75 JE g 7 P S B R

38.6

nREBEEE(E)

TR B B 2 B SRR (K
ZEHMEREZER BHEIIZ
BEERBHZBHANN -
ZETHBREANNEGFE
ZHBMK - ALt - ZEFEH
REMEBEBE DR [REX
BEIRFALEAREZSE
RE o BEF R AKE 2 B HR
R BEERBRITIAAIETT
EEHRBRERNEENR - &
EHERZEFEPERBRER
B E 2 R E RN A HIEE -

Group
F5E

Maturity analysis - term loan subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HERERBEAR EMENRECRR AN 2 I 24

Total
contractual
undiscounted Total
Within In2to  More than cash carrying
1 year 5years 5years outflows amount
BRRER
- ZZEREF  BBRLE RENELE  REAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BT AT BT
31 December 2014 —E-M&E+-A=+-A 177,962 50,733 33,005 261,700 249,481
31 December 2013 “E-=41ZA=1-H 179,330 10,246 35,457 225,033 217,074
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group. The Group currently does not
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for a subsidiary engaged in securities
trading and broking services, which is regulated entity under
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and subject
to the respective minimum liquid capital requirement HK$3
million as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

During the year, the subsidiary of the Company, which is
regulated by the SFC, complied with all the minimum capital
requirement.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2014 amounted to approximately HK$399,285,000
(2013: HK$381,921,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

E A P
AREERERY BIBA

RS

(a) REREFRFELSS 26 )
R AT R A
2 ISR 26

() XFHAKBZBEMER: R

€ RMEAKEZREREERE
RHEESD o

REBEERNEREEARBETR
ARER NERKEEARBEKR
REH WERBINAEERKREKZE
EFER o NEERE I BWEANELE
AR EHEK -

R-FB-—OE+_A=1t—BR=F

—=f+-A=+—RH AKEHA
BT EMINEEEINZ EARESR - tfE—
DR %EE&”‘?EH&FZW%“
AR ZMBRRANRBFLZRAE
%ﬁ’zﬁ*ﬂé,\aﬂﬁ%ﬁf;ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ’]
ER YEAXEARASERDEXNBE
3,000,0007EE’\]EIF)?*EBE'<

FR - ARFRZZMBAB (EXE
ERE)CETRAREKERER

BE
=

o n

EEERERANAEABTEZER -
RZE—NE+=-A=+—H &R
& BB A8 399,285,000 L ( — &
— =4 : ##381,921,0007T) * EH
EEEEERIBEHZEAATRTE
HISRRS IR EME YRBERS A
B Z AR °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HECETRS

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group A T AZREEABE AESKEE 2 24 -
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published ZBELEBEMHME @ IEEACD TR ZEEX
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not  BF f 3R 5% o AL 2 W K & Bz B 5 sk
form part of the audited financial statements. Z—31;

Results ES

2014
—E-—mE

HK$’000
BT

Revenue WA 27,709 27,456 28,647 30,721 32,115
Profit for the year FEmF 34,568 10,245 11,789 16,938 15,109
Assets and Liabilities EEREE

2014
—E-—mEF

HK$’000
BT

Total assets BB E 454,384 429,474 439,644 622,400 674,990
Total liabilities “EE (118,520) (82,870) (76,701)  (240,479)  (275,705)

Shareholders’ funds RRES 340,864 346,604 362,943 381,921 399,285
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BEYE N

Investment Properties

Res-do-chao K Commercial  Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold

No.44,

Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,

EM Macau,

Macau

SBPIE B 1N B R 4457 GES FHEIFRE 349 IR 100%
MEREER D

Kith &

P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial  Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold

NoS 565-605-C,

Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,

Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,

Macau

RPIRFEAKN S B %519-5975% [HES HhEHE 8,110 R 100%
/B8 38-78-B5%

R F 4 B 5 25565-605-CHE

BB EHP12-07 « P12-08 ~ P12-09 &% P12-10B
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BEYEN

Nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street,
Sheung Wan (Mingle Place),

and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
FIRKEEAT105-107R(BERE) &
E RSB 135 R 5B 1365% AR

Flat H, 20/F,

Heng Shan Mansion,

Kao Shan Terrace,

No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong
BEHRBREH
REHE195
=B E L
20BHE

Commercial  Long term 13,599 sq.ft.
leasehold

[EES REFFE 13,599 IR

Residential Long term 691 sa.ft.
leasehold

T= RHAEE o1 eHR

100%

100%

100%

100%



Flat E, 27/F,

Pine Mansion,

Harbour View Gardens,
No. 26 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

BB RUBA &
RN EBE265%
BRIEEFIE
2TIBEE

Flat B, 10/F,

Kai Tien Mansion,
Horizon Gardens,

No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

ARG RBA TN
REBB175
BRIEE R
108B=

AL (RE) ARAF « —F—IEER
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BEYE N

Residential

Residential

F=

Long term 1,029 sq.ft.
leasehold
RHMEE  1020FHR

Long term 902 sq.ft.
leasehold

REHME  goEAR

100%

100%

100%

100%
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BEYEN

Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sa.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,

No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,

Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,

Hong Kong

BB RBAGEH E2=2 RHEIMEE  s75FHR 100%
AN EIEiBE215%

=LAWL

231EFE
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